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Corporate Information

2001 2000 % Change

Capital spending $140.9 $167.1 -15.7%

Research 
& Development $104.5 $112.0 -6.7%

2001 2000 % Change

Debt $737.0 $794.8 -7.3%

Stockholders’ 
equity $1,104.2 $1,087.1 1.6%

2001 2000

Number 13,000 14,000
of employees

2001 2000

Net earnings per 
diluted share excluding 
restructuring and other
non-recurring charges $3.23 $5.01
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2001 2000 % Change

Net sales $2,351.6 $2,645.9 -11.1%

Net earnings $66.4 $94.0 -29.4%

2001 2000

Net earnings per $2.51 $3.54
diluted share

Average number of 
shares outstanding–diluted 26.5 26.5

2001 2000 % Change

Net earnings excluding  
restructuring and other 
non-recurring charges $85.4 $132.7 -35.6%

F I N A N C I A L  H I G H L I G H T S  

BorgWarner (millions of dollars, except per share data)

Financial strength provides stability. Technology fuels



Innovation and Affordability Innovation
and affordability must go hand-in-hand. In
the early 1980s, it took 12% of a person’s
monthly income to make a car payment.
Today, it takes only 7%. This ability to
make vehicles more and more affordable
is what fueled the growth of the industry
in the 1990s. How do we keep cars and
trucks affordable while maintaining rea-
sonable profitability? I’d like to see more
of what is beginning to happen today —
our customers asking us for ideas, work-
ing with us and sharing the rewards — a
cooperative effort focused on innovation. 

A balanced customer portfolio is also critical for us. BorgWarner’s revenue
by customer reflects the global market share of the automakers and their
alliances. About half of our sales are to GM, Ford and DaimlerChrysler, which
together represent about the same percentage of the world market. As
non-U.S.-based vehicle makers gain significance, we continue to diversify
our customer base. We have enjoyed a long relationship with Toyota.
Honda, VW/Audi, Renault and Peugeot, as well as Hyundai — the fastest-
growing brand in the U.S. — are among our fastest-growing customers.

I had hoped to avoid another downturn during my career, but when we
saw this one coming, we decided to do it right. As a result, we are stronger
than we have ever been. I would like to thank the men and women of
BorgWarner throughout the world who successfully juggled short-term
necessity with long-term ambition during 2001. They continue to make it
happen, just as they always have.

That is the question our worldwide leadership group addressed last summer. We asked

it again after the tragic events of September 11. The answer remains the same. We will

continue to do what BorgWarner people do best — innovate.  

Through innovation, we make cars and trucks more fuel efficient, easier to handle, cleaner
performing, and yes, fun to drive. In BorgWarner’s 74 year history, innovation has helped us survive,
and even thrive, despite uncertain economic conditions like the one our industry experienced in 2001. 

There is no doubt that the year was a difficult one for BorgWarner and the entire auto industry.
Our sales and earnings were down. While auto sales themselves were brisk due to incentives and
zero-percent financing, automakers reduced inventories rather than produce more cars and trucks. 

I am very pleased that BorgWarner not only survived these industry conditions, but is among the
most financially healthy and well-positioned automotive suppliers today. We saw the downturn
coming early and acted aggressively. We initiated a hiring freeze, reduced spending and con-
served cash. As a result, our cash flow was positive in each quarter of 2001, margins improved
throughout the year and we maintained our credit ratings and reduced debt. 

Ready to Go I am most proud, however, of the things we did not have to do to survive. Because
we acted early, we avoided the massive layoffs announced regularly in our industry. We did not
slash spending on research and development — the fuel for our future growth. We have an intact
organization, with $1.1 billion in anticipated new business over the next three years. We have the
right balance of engine and driveline businesses to lead powertrain technology change. We are
ready to go.

HOW DO WE CONTINUE PROFITABLE GROWTH?

John F. Fiedler
Chairman and Chief  Execut ive Off icer

T O  O U R  S H A R E H O L D E R S

POWERTRAIN SALES
Estimated 2002

25% 4WD

47% Engines

28% Transmissions

GEOGRAPHIC PRESENCE
2001 Combined Worldwide Sales

20% Europe

65% Americas

15% Asia

BorgWarner has remained ahead of the pack and is poised to take
advantage of an industry upturn for three reasons. We have:

• A disciplined innovation process that drives new business

• A diversified global customer base

• Financial strength and focus that balances the short- and long-term

What does the future hold? I see a BorgWarner that is meeting the
challenge of making cars and trucks more fuel-efficient. This means
leading innovations to improve today’s internal combustion engine and
transmission, both of which are expected to dominate vehicle power-
trains through 2020. It means working across all our businesses to track
and participate in the evolution of alternative powertrains of the future.
It means working with automakers all over the world, matching our
innovation with their own. We need to do these things and give drivers
vehicles that have the power, performance, comfort and affordability
that they have come to expect.
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Chairman and Chief  Execut ive Off icer
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Fuel-efficient DualTronic

transmission technology

selected for 2003 production

by a major European

automaker.

Technical centers completed

in North America for 

cooling and turbocharger

engineering. 

Second innovation summit

of top BorgWarner people

focused on new product

development for improved

fuel economy.

Expansion in India 

included cooling systems

and chain products, joining

turbocharger and four-

wheel drive production.

Expected new business wins

over the next three years

total $1.1 billion, with

Honda and GM our fastest

growing customers.

Contracts for four-wheel

drive business won with

Honda and Kia; first GM

four-wheel drive production

announced.

Turbocharger technology

advances created new

business opportunities

with VW/Audi, Peugeot,

Ford and Renault.

2 0 0 1  A C C O M P L I S H M E N T S
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20

2020

“Fuel efficiency will be the overriding driving force in 

the evolution of powertrain and vehicle technology.”

“The internal combustion engine will be the dominant 

engine through 2020 and beyond. The application of existing

technology will result in reduced fuel consumption.”

“The transmission will become an integral part of the 

engine management system. It will dictate the engine speed

at which the required power is delivered, optimizing the 

trade-off between emissions and fuel consumption.”

“Conventional drivetrains with 42-volt stop/start operation

will be the dominant drivetrain architecture.”

“There will be a trend toward the increased use 

of turbochargers.”

Source: DRI-WEFA/Arthur D. Little Study December 2001

Future Powertrain Technology: 

A look at the year

Each BorgWarner group can make important contributions to improving fuel 

economy and air quality worldwide while giving drivers the performance and 

comfort they want and expect.
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536.2

796.9

885.8in millions of dollars

BUSINESS DESCRIPTION Leading designer and manufacturer of turbochargers for the
passenger car and commercial vehicle markets. 

FUEL ECONOMY Turbochargers give small, fuel-efficient engines the power and perform-
ance of larger ones. They are critical for the functioning of direct injected diesel engines.
New turbocharger technology can improve fuel performance by 5% to 25%.

GROWTH OPPORTUNITIES

• Continued growth of turbocharged diesel engines in European passenger cars

• Engine downsizing for improved fuel consumption and emissions leading to increased
use of turbocharging on gasoline engines

• Next generation turbo technology for passenger car and truck diesel engines 

• Electronic control for turbochargers

• Electrically powered boosting devices

• Use of advanced materials for improved service life

PLANTS AND TECHNICAL CENTERS Headquarters: Kirchheimbolanden, Germany

T U R B O  S Y S T E M S

HIGHLIGHTS Engine timing system and turbocharger demand continued to be strong, particularly in Europe. During the year a number of new engine programs were announced or launched.
These included major timing system programs with Honda and turbocharger business with Renault, VW/Audi, Peugeot and Ford. To serve the new engine business, facilities were opened in
Oroszlany, Hungary and Cortland, New York. The new North American engineering and technical center for turbochargers was completed in Asheville, North Carolina. Overall results were affected
by the North American automotive downturn and currency weakness.

BUSINESS DESCRIPTION Global leader in the design and manufacture of automotive
chain systems and components for engine timing, automatic transmission and four-wheel
drive applications.

FUEL ECONOMY Our chain timing systems are critical for controlling engine efficiency
and noise. As variable cam timing is added to timing systems, fuel savings of 10% to
15% are possible. Other benefits are significant power and emission improvements.

GROWTH OPPORTUNITIES

• Engine timing systems moving from belts to chains in Japan and Europe
• Variable cam timing systems
• Timing chain systems for direct injected diesel engines
• Growth of overhead cam engines
• Systems integration; alternative technologies
• Chain belts and HY-VO pump drives for continuously variable transmissions (CVT)
• MORSE GEMINI chain systems for noise reduction

PLANTS AND TECHNICAL CENTERS Headquarters: Ithaca, New York

Arcore, Italy
Cortland, New York

M O R S E  T E C

MORSE TEC / TURBO SYSTEMS

Simcoe, Ontario, Canada
Tainan Shien, Taiwan

Guadalajara, Mexico 
Kakkalur, India (JV)
Nabari City, Japan

Asheville, North Carolina
Bradford, England

Campinas, Brazil
Chennai, India (JV)

Hitachinaka City, Japan (JV)
Oroszlany, Hungary

869.4



HIGHLIGHTS Strong sales to European and Asian automakers partially offset the North
American sales decline. Increased installation rates for automatic transmissions continued
to grow in Europe and Asia. The first production contract for our new concept DualTronic
transmission technology was awarded. Productivity gains in this business were significant
during the year.

BUSINESS DESCRIPTION Supplies “shift quality” components and systems including
one-way clutches, transmission bands, friction plates and clutch pack assemblies to
virtually every automatic transmission maker in the world.

FUEL ECONOMY Efficiency gains through transmission performance can be achieved
with the addition of speeds to traditional automatics, the use of new concepts in trans-
mission launch devices and the adoption of alternative transmission technologies that
can deliver improvements of 5% to 15%. 

GROWTH OPPORTUNITIES

• Dual clutch systems for new automated transmissions

• Shift from components to modules

• European and Korean market growth of automatic transmissions

• Move from four- to five- to six-speed transmissions

• Subsystems for continuously variable transmissions (CVT)

• Substitution of modular wet starting clutches for torque converters

P LANTS AND TECHNICAL CENTERS Headquarters: Lombard, Illinois

Bellwood, Illinois
Eumsung, Korea (JV)
Frankfort, Illinois

HIGHLIGHTS Sales were down due to weak demand in the North American light
and heavy truck markets. The group further positioned itself for growth in emerging
markets such as India and increased its market presence in Europe. Additional
customers for new generation electronic cooling systems were secured. A new
headquarters and technical center opened in Michigan.

BUSINESS DESCRIPTION Global leader in the design and supply of cooling system
solutions for the sport-utility, light truck, commercial medium and heavy truck and
off-highway vehicle markets.

FUEL ECONOMY Electronically controlled cooling systems can enhance engine
efficiency from 3% to 5% and contribute to emission reductions by allowing
engines to operate at higher, more precise temperatures. 

GROWTH OPPORTUNITIES

• Continued popularity of light trucks and SUVs

• Consolidation of supplier base in commercial vehicles

• Central and Eastern European, South American and Asian market expansion

• System development agreements with other key suppliers

• Emission regulations related to diesels

• Higher fuel economy challenges

• Exhaust and noise reduction

PLANTS AND TECHNICAL CENTERS Headquarters: Marshall, Michigan

Bradford, England
Cadillac, Michigan
Changwon, South Korea

TRANSMISSION SYSTEMS COOLING SYSTEMS

HIGHLIGHTS While this business suffered from erratic customer production
schedules in 2001, the group won new business during the year that positions it
for improvement in 2002. This includes new business with Kia and Hyundai, addi-
tional Honda business and the anticipated launch of new GM business. 

BUSINESS DESCRIPTION Leading independent global designer and producer 
of torque distribution and management systems—transfer cases, INTERACTIVE
TORQUE MANAGEMENT (ITM) devices—for four-wheel drive vehicles in the
sport-utility, light truck and crossover vehicle markets. These systems enhance
driver security, drivability and handling.

FUEL ECONOMY While our four-wheel and all-wheel drive products are more
focused on the need for vehicle stability, our active, on-demand systems are more
fuel-efficient than those with mechanical systems that are constantly engaged. 

GROWTH OPPORTUNITIES

• Continued popularity of four-wheel drive in an established market segment

• Growing popularity of four-wheel drive/all-wheel drive passenger cars and 
crossover vehicles

• Continued application of electronically controlled torque management devices in
four-wheel drive and all-wheel drive vehicles

• Expanded customer base in rear-wheel drive based four-wheel drive segment

PLANTS AND TECHNICAL CENTERS Headquarters: Sterling Heights, Michigan

Beijing, China (JV)
Livonia, Michigan
Longview, Texas

HIGHLIGHTS Volume weakness at its major customer depressed sales for this
group. Its electronic and electromechanical expertise continues to support new
cross-business growth opportunities including new concept transmission technology,
and engine cooling, lubrication and charging systems.

BUSINESS DESCRIPTION Full service supplier of air and fluid control systems
and components for enhanced engine and transmission performance, reduced
emissions, improved fuel economy and increased vehicle safety.

FUEL ECONOMY The trend toward “smart” engines and transmissions provides
the opportunity for this group to convert individual controls to integrated modules,
for improved fuel efficiency and reduced emissions through products like our
DualTronic transmission technology, variable cam timing and electronic cooling.

GROWTH OPPORTUNITIES

• Increased use of electromechanical actuation and electronic control of air and fluid
systems for engines and transmissions

• New emission and fuel economy regulations for Europe and North America

• Introduction of new automated transmission systems for Europe and North America

PLANTS AND TECHNICAL CENTERS Headquarters:  Warren, Michigan

Dixon, Illinois
Rothbury, Michigan

TORQTRANSFER SYSTEMS AIR/FLUID SYSTEMS

Margam, Wales
Muncie, Indiana

Pune, India (JV)
Seneca, South Carolina
Sirsi, India (JV)

Sallisaw, Oklahoma
Spring Lake, Michigan

Tulle, France
Water Valley, Mississippi

Fukuroi City, Japan (JV)
Heidelberg, Germany

Ketsch, Germany
Sterling Heights, Michigan

Chennai, India
Fletcher, North Carolina
Gainesville, Georgia

Markdorf, Germany
Ningbo, China (JV)
São José dos Campos, Brazil
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D I E S E L  P O W E R T R A I N

T I M I N G  C H A I N / S Y S T E M S

Chain types include inverted tooth silent, MORSE GEMINI, small pitch silent and roller

chain; sprockets, tensioners and snubbers; torsional absorbing shaft drives; engine

accessory components

T U R B O C H A R G E R S

Single, twin entry and water-cooled turbine housings; integrated boost pressure control

valves and wastegates; variable geometry and variable sliding ring turbines; exhaust

manifolds with integrated turbine housings; two-stage turbocharging and turbo-

compound systems

A I R  M A N A G E M E N T / E M I S S I O N  S Y S T E M S

Program management, device software and system design; variable turbine geometry 

control; electronic throttle control; air induction systems; throttle bodies, electric vacuum

regulators, exhaust gas recirculation valves, solenoids, control valves

C O O L I N G  S Y S T E M S

Integrated cooling modules; electronically and mechanically controlled air sensing and

coolant sensing fan clutch products; nylon engine cooling fans

T R A N S M I S S I O N  M A N A G E M E N T

Shift quality components and systems including transmission bands, friction plates, 

clutchpack modules, one-way and bi-directional clutches and clutch systems; wet

starting clutches, forward/reverse shifting components and systems; torque converter

lockup clutches; solenoids and control modules; HY-VO chain and sprocket systems;

transmission pumps and drives; CVT chain belts; DualTronic wet clutch and electro-

hydraulic control modules

T O R Q U E  M A N A G E M E N T

Systems and devices for four-wheel and all-wheel drive including INTERACTIVE TORQUE

MANAGEMENT; part-time, full-time and on-demand transfer cases; automatic locking

hubs; synchronizers; electronic control units; sensors and actuators; four-wheel drive

chain; clutch systems; pumps; electronic controls

FUELING 

D I E S E L

8 BorgWarner 2001

The most fuel effective way to generate and deliver power to the wheels is the diesel powertrain, with efficiencies up to 40%.

GROWTH

BorgWarner 2001 9



GROWTH

G A S O L I N E

New technologies could double the efficiency of today’s gasoline powertrain 
which delivers only about a quarter of the power created to the wheels.

BorgWarner 2001 9

T I M I N G  C H A I N / S Y S T E M S

Chain types include inverted tooth silent, small pitch silent and roller chain; crankshaft

and cam shaft sprockets; tensioners and snubbers; engine accessory and balance shaft

drive components, variable valve timing systems

T U R B O C H A R G E R S

Turbochargers with water-cooled bearing housings; integrated boost pressure control

valves and wastegates; variable sliding ring turbines; exhaust manifolds with integrated

turbine housings; compressor housings with integrated recirculation valves; two-stage

turbocharging systems

A I R  M A N A G E M E N T / E M I S S I O N  S Y S T E M S

Program management and software and system design; air induction and secondary

air systems; throttle bodies, electric vacuum regulators, exhaust gas recirculation valves,

solenoids, control valves, oil pumps

C O O L I N G  S Y S T E M S

Integrated cooling modules; electronically and mechanically controlled air sensing and

coolant sensing fan clutch products; nylon engine cooling fans

T R A N S M I S S I O N  M A N A G E M E N T

Shift quality components and systems including transmission bands, friction plates,

clutchpack modules, one-way and bi-directional clutches and clutch systems; wet

starting clutches, forward/reverse shifting components and systems; torque converter

lockup clutches; solenoids and control modules; HY-VO chain and sprocket systems;

transmission pumps and drives; CVT chain belts; DualTronic wet clutch and electro-

hydraulic control modules

T O R Q U E  M A N A G E M E N T

Systems and devices for four-wheel and all-wheel drive including INTERACTIVE TORQUE

MANAGEMENT; part-time, full-time and on-demand transfer cases; automatic locking

hubs; synchronizers; electronic control units; sensors and actuators; four-wheel drive

chain; clutch systems; pumps; electronic controls 

G A S O L I N E  P O W E R T R A I N

FUELING 

8 BorgWarner 2001



CASE STUDY.01

Our electronic four-

wheel and all-wheel 

drive systems contribute

to better handling and

fuel economy. 

COMPETITIVE ADVANTAGECOMPETITIVE ADVANTAGE

BorgWarner 2001 1110 BorgWarner 2001

How do you win new business with a “big-three”

customer when they have their own internal

suppliers for some of your systems? To secure

new four-wheel drive and transmission business,

it took persistence, plus superior technology

and manufacturing approaches offering both

standardization and flexibility. As automakers

divest their internal suppliers, BorgWarner stands

to gain even more business.

NORTH AMERICA



Championship drive chain Our engine
timing technology that provides
durability and reliability for
Indianapolis 500 and NASCAR 
winners is being designed into
new engine programs worldwide,
including those with Ford,
DaimlerChrysler, Honda and Nissan. 

Best of the best Innovation in
manufacturing is just as important
as in product development.
Industry Week magazine honored
the 1,200 people at our Muncie,
Indiana four-wheel drive system
plant for creating one of America’s
Best Plants in 2001.

BorgWarner’s industry-leading four-wheel drive system will be featured in 14 of this major North American

customer’s vehicle programs over the next three years. Because this business represents a significant

addition to our customer base and is the first new four-wheel drive business with this automaker since 1987,

supplying this vital system is a strategic victory for our company. 

Winning the business was accomplished by our understanding of the customer’s needs, our engineering

experience and expertise, and our recognized technological leadership in torque distribution management.

A key strength was our ability to design a flexible product and manufacturing process that enables us to easily

customize our system to suit a wide range of this automaker’s vehicle lineup, from luxury passenger cars to

full-size SUVs.

Our sophisticated torque-transfer system is standard on the first of these, a distinctive, all-new vehicle that

expands a popular SUV brand’s product lineup and customer base with a more refined but still-rugged, full-

size SUV. The electronically controlled, full-time four-wheel drive system is integrated with the powertrain and

brake-based traction control system. This integration increases security, drivability and ease of handling. 

In the future, we foresee these important benefits becoming standard equipment on many cars — not just

SUVs and trucks. By applying our “on-demand” active all-wheel drive technology on front-wheel drive

passenger cars and crossover vehicles, we expect to tap into a market estimated to grow nearly 200% by the

year 2010. We are a leading global designer and producer of torque distribution management systems for

four-wheel and all-wheel drive vehicles, making us exceptionally well positioned in this market.

In transmission products, BorgWarner has almost doubled its friction element business with this customer over

the last few years as more of its needs are out-sourced. As an industry leader in shift-quality components

and systems, we provide transmission engineering know-how and manufacturing expertise. Leveraging this

expertise, we have been able to increase production without adding new facilities.

C O N T I N U E D

On-shore opportunities BorgWarner
benefits from new business
opportunities as more global
automakers such as long-time
customer Toyota locate trans-
mission and engine manufacturing
facilities in North America.

Improved handling and stability  
Millions of front-wheel drive cars,
minivans and crossover vehicles
are expected to include all-wheel
drive systems for enhanced handling
and stability, as more drivers experi-
ence the security of this technology. 

Electronic interfaces As automated
transmission designs incorporate
more sophisticated electronic con-
trols, they need critical interfaces
and control modules developed by
BorgWarner engineers to seamlessly
integrate transmission functions
into total powertrain management. 

Better cooling, fuel economy  A new
generation of products with electronic
control will provide better engine
cooling and improved fuel economy
for sport-utility vehicles and light
trucks. More precise temperature
management can also mean
reduced emissions.

2,586

6,121

3,771

2001

2006 e

RWD

FWD

14%

46%
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2001 2006 2011

Efficient transmissions

In 2011, 47% of the world’s

transmissions and 85% 

of those in North America

are expected to be

traditional automatics,

but a move to 6-speed

automatics will be needed

for fuel efficiency. 

millions of units

CVT
Continuously variable

A/T
Automatic

DCT
DualTronic

AMT
Torque-interrupt 
automated manual

MT
Manual

75

60

45

30

15

0

2001 2011e2006e

Global Four-Wheel Drive Market 
(THOUSANDS OF UNITS)

5,378

CASE STUDY.01  NORTH AMERICA MORE INNOVATIONS NORTH AMERICA

12



CASE STUDY.02

FUN & FUEL EFFICIENTFUN & FUEL EFFICIENT
BorgWarner 2001 1514 BorgWarner 2001

Combining our electro-

hydraulic controls know-how

with advancements in wet

friction systems is propelling

us to market first with tech-

nology for new fuel-efficient

automated transmissions.

Fuel efficient, smooth shifting — and fun to drive.

With a good idea in search of an innovative car-

maker, BorgWarner engineers teamed up with a

major European automaker to develop the next

great advancement in automated transmissions.

On the engine side, we’ve also made significant

strides in timing systems and turbochargers that

meet the strict reliability, quality and delivery

expectations of this demanding customer.

EUROPE



The first application of BorgWarner’s DualTronic wet clutch and control system technology will debut with

our European customer’s new-concept automated transmission. The potential market for the technology

could exceed $1 billion in annual sales in the next ten years. 

Combining our electrohydraulic controls know-how with our materials science advancements in wet friction

systems enabled commercialization of a transmission concept that has existed since the 1980s. The new

transmission is an innovative combination of the fuel efficiency of the traditional manual and the smooth

and effortless shift of an automatic. With most European production devoted to manual transmissions,

our concept also allows automakers to use their existing capacity and workers to manufacture this new

automated transmission.

In another “first” with this customer, BorgWarner will supply silent timing chain systems for the automaker’s

new generation of mid-size four-cylinder gasoline engines. This is the first application of our timing systems

in this customer’s vehicles. The optimum noise, vibration and harshness (NVH) performance of our systems

were deciding factors in the selection of BorgWarner to supply up to 500,000 timing system units per year. 

Our turbocharger success started with a small application of new technology and has blossomed into a

major business opportunity with this customer. With this win, BorgWarner has strengthened its position as

an established supplier of next generation turbocharger technology for passenger cars in Europe. This year,

we will begin to supply turbochargers for this automaker’s 1.9 liter direct-injected diesel engine and contin-

ue to supply turbos for a majority of their gasoline engines. 

Next generation turbocharger technology has been steadily increasing its share of applications and is

expected to be used in many passenger car diesel engines in Europe in the future. New technology provides

maximum efficiencies at low engine speeds, quick boost pressure, improved vehicle drivability and fuel

economy, and reduced emissions.

By 2005, over 40%

of the engines in

Western Europe 

are expected to 

be diesels, with

almost 100% of

them fuel-efficient

turbo-diesels.

C O N T I N U E D

High-tech lubrication Our innovative
two-stage oil pump is helping BMW
respond to the need for greater engine
efficiencies and fuel economy. The
pump is specially designed to meet the
requirements of BMW’s oil pressure -
actuated variable valve timing system. 

Downsizing engines  Our compact yet
powerful turbocharger is a key factor in
enabling carmakers like Peugeot, Ford
and Renault to achieve the environmental
goals of small diesel engines without
sacrificing performance. 

Pacesetting shift quality  The ZF 
6-speed automatic transmission
introduced in the 2002 BMW 745i is
a very demanding application for our
shift quality products. It delivers better
fuel economy and acceleration, and
is simpler, lighter and more compact
than the 5-speed it replaces. 

Advanced truck efficiency Continued
advances in fuel efficiency for com-
mercial trucks are critical given the
price of European fuels. Our engineers
are collaborating with major truck and
engine manufacturers to manage
engine temperatures for more precise
and efficient operation.

High-torque durability The demands
of high-torque, fuel-efficient engines,
such as direct injected diesels, are
driving the need for higher durability
silent chain timing systems. Chain
systems are expected to displace
belts to account for more than half
the market by 2005.

Transmission shift Our technology will
help create a dramatic shift away from
today’s manual transmissions, giving
European drivers more options. Driving
the shift are higher fuel costs, tougher
emission requirements and consumers
who enjoy the driving experience.

EUROPE: Belt Market to Chain Market

Belt Engines 69% Chain Engines 31%

2000
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TIMING IS RIGHTTIMING IS RIGHT
CASE STUDY.03

Our proprietary chain 

timing systems provide

durability, noise reduction,

packaging advantages and

performance efficiencies. 

BorgWarner 2001 1918 BorgWarner 2001

Japanese automakers are known for their quality,

as well as their loyalty to suppliers within their

immediate circles. Two significant contracts with

a major Japanese vehicle maker have brought

BorgWarner into that very special affiliation. In

both cases, it was powertrain expertise not avail-

able elsewhere that led our customer to partner

with us on chain timing systems for new-gener-

ation engines and the first electronic all-wheel

drive system for entirely new crossover vehicles. 

A S I A  



CASE STUDY.03  ASIA  

The shift from belts to more durable timing chain systems makes engines more fuel efficient and reduces

emissions for automakers in Japan and elsewhere. BorgWarner’s small-pitch silent-chain technology for

overhead cam engines is designed for low noise, power and durability — key factors as governmental agencies

require emissions equipment durability of up to 150,000 miles — all in a compact package to accommodate

smaller and smaller engines. 

The use of chain drives by Japanese automakers worldwide is expected to grow by more than 50 percent —

from 3.6 million engines currently to about 8.5 million by 2005. BorgWarner expects to supply more than

one million of its small-pitch silent chains to our new Japanese customer for its new-generation engines. Part

of our success in winning this business depended on our ability to make an exceptional product in various

parts of the world. Production will take place at BorgWarner facilities in Japan and the United States. 

In another significant partnership with this customer, BorgWarner innovated the electronically controlled four-

wheel drive InterActive Torque Management (ITM) system for two all-new sport-utility vehicles. The industry-

first system debuted on a top-of-the-line vehicle in 2000 that was an immediate success, winning SUV of the

year and a waiting list of buyers. The second vehicle is scheduled for introduction in the summer of 2002. 

Both contracts were awarded based on our ability to match our technology to the automaker’s requirements

for exceptional vehicle stability — as well as to partner closely with them from beginning to end for successful

production launches. Our lightweight, intelligent ITM four-wheel drive system offers drivers better handling

and fuel economy, improved security and more flexibility than passive, mechanical four-wheel drive systems.

BorgWarner is adapting this electronic technology for minivans, station wagons, cars and crossover vehicles

(SUVs on car platforms). Our ITM system has become the benchmark against which other four-wheel drive

systems are measured. 

C O N T I N U E D

Small car boost Small cars with

engines under 2 liters are the fastest

growing segment of the Japanese

market and a boon to our business as

drivers demand both engine power

and automatic transmissions in these

diminutive models.

Hybrid powertrains  Concerns about

fuel economy and emissions are

driving the development of electric

and gasoline hybrid cars, like the

Toyota Prius, which use our custom-

designed chain. 

Chain drives Rubber timing belts in
Japanese cars will be a thing of the
past as automakers shift to engine
chain technology. Our small-pitch,
silent-chain systems are designed for
low noise, power and durability, in a
compact package to accommodate
small engines. 

Korean car boom Having established

a manufacturing presence in Korea

over 12 years ago, BorgWarner has

benefited from the rapid growth of

Korean car and SUV sales. Their

consumer powertrain warranties

are among the best in the industry.

India expansion  India’s adoption of

EURO II emission standards is

driving changes in engine technology

and providing opportunities for us

as we expand our vehicle chain,

turbocharger and cooling systems

businesses in that region.

Boost for turbo In support of the
growing worldwide demand for 
turbochargers, BorgWarner and
Hitachi have teamed up to produce
and sell turbochargers in the Asian
market. This joint venture boosts
our global manufacturing and
design capabilities. 
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Chain growth 

The number of chain driven
engines in Japan is expected
to double by 2005.

Belt Engines 42%

Chain Engines 58%

Belt Engines 69%

Chain Engines 31%
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Market share

held by small

cars that are 

2.0-liters or

less in Japan

Small Cars, Big Clout
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76%

1997Source: 
Automotive News
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Introduction

BorgWarner Inc. and Consolidated Subsidiaries (the “Company”) is a leading
global supplier of highly engineered systems and components for powertrain
applications. Our products help improve vehicle performance, fuel efficiency,
handling and air quality. Our products are manufactured and sold worldwide, pri-
marily to original equipment manufacturers (OEM) of passenger cars, sport utility
vehicles, trucks, and commercial transportation products. The Company operates
manufacturing facilities serving customers in the Americas, Europe and Asia, and
is an original equipment supplier to every major OEM in the world.

The Company made some key acquisitions in 1999. Kuhlman Corporation (Kuhlman)
was acquired in March of 1999 and the Eaton Fluid Power Division (Eaton) in
October 1999. Both of these acquisitions were accounted for under the purchase
method of accounting, and the results are reflected in the accompanying infor-
mation from the date of acquisition. The turbocharger business from Kuhlman,
combined with our German turbocharger business, adds to the Morse TEC 
business segment’s variety of engine-related products to improve performance,
fuel economy and air quality. The Eaton and Kuhlman powertrain cooling busi-
nesses were combined to form the Cooling Systems business. Substantially all of
the remaining Kuhlman businesses have been sold. 

Results of Operations

2001 vs. 2000 vs. 1999

BorgWarner reported net earnings for 2001 of $66.4 million, or $2.51 per diluted
share, compared to 2000 earnings of $94.0 million, or $3.54 per diluted share.
Excluding restructuring and other non-recurring charges, 2001 earnings were
$85.4 million, or $3.23 per diluted share, compared to 2000 earnings of $132.7
million, or $5.01 per diluted share. Net earnings in 1999 were $132.3 million or
$5.07 per diluted share. 

Overall, our sales declined 11.1% from 2000 and grew 7.6% between 2000 and
1999. Excluding sold businesses, sales were 7.1% lower in 2001 and 10.2%
higher in 2000, than the previous year. The main cause of the sales decline was
the overall sales decline in the auto industry. As a comparison, worldwide vehicle
production decreased by 3.8% in 2001 and increased 2.8% in 2000. North American
production decreased by 9.7% in 2001 and increased by 1.3% in 2000, Japanese
production decreased by 2.3% in 2001 and increased by 2.2% in 2000 and Western
European production increased 1.4% and 1.3% in 2001 and 2000, respectively. 

Our 2001 results reflected ongoing weak production demand, the weak Euro and
Yen, production slowdowns and shutdowns across all of our operating segments,
and further deterioration in the heavy truck market. If currencies remained at their
average 2000 rates in 2001, our 2001 revenues would have been approximately

$47 million higher and our 2001 pre-tax income would have been approximately
$7 million higher. The primary growth drivers in 2000 over 1999 were relatively
strong global automotive markets, growth in engine timing systems applications,
strong demand for turbochargers, especially in European passenger cars, increased
content on new generations of transmissions, improvements in four-wheel drive
installation rates on light trucks and results from acquisitions. 

Our outlook as we head into 2002 is one of cautious optimism as the North
American automotive market continues to experience a downturn. We anticipate
the first half of 2002 will continue to be weak, but we intend to use our financial
strength to manage through the weakness by controlling costs and other spending
so that we are poised to take advantage of opportunities as the cycle turns up
again. We are cautiously optimistic that light vehicle production will recover
somewhat in the second half of 2002 and we will see growth from our new appli-
cations. We also saw the beginnings of a decline in Europe in the fourth quarter
of 2001 and expect this to continue throughout 2002.

Results By Operating Segment

Our products fall into five reportable operating segments: Air/Fluid Systems, Cooling
Systems, Morse TEC, TorqTransfer Systems, and Transmission Systems. The seg-
ments are profiled on pages 5 through 7. The following tables detail sales and earn-
ings before interest and taxes (EBIT) by segment for each of the last three years.

Net Sales (millions of dollars)

Year Ended December 31, 2001 2000 1999

Air/Fluid Systems $ 357.8 $ 427.8 $ 413.9
Cooling Systems 220.5 281.3 142.8
Morse TEC 869.4 885.8 796.9
TorqTransfer Systems 500.1 526.7 563.3
Transmission Systems 428.8 437.5 413.4
Divested operations and businesses held for sale 18.0 132.9 178.0
Inter-segment eliminations (43.0) (46.1) (49.7)
Net sales $2,351.6 $2,645.9 $2,458.6

Earnings Before Interest and Taxes (millions of dollars)

Year Ended December 31, 2001 2000 1999

Air/Fluid Systems $ 12.9 $ 35.7 $ 36.5
Cooling Systems 7.5 32.1 17.9
Morse TEC 119.8 127.4 109.7
TorqTransfer Systems 24.1 37.2 41.2
Transmission Systems 48.5 46.0 54.1
Divested operations and businesses held for sale (0.2) 3.2 6.9
Earnings before interest and taxes $212.6 $281.6 $266.3
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particularly in the fourth quarter. EBIT in 2000 was 15.0% below 1999 levels.
Volume related improvements in Korea were more than offset by operating prob-
lems incurred in North America. The restructuring charges recognized in the third
and fourth quarters of 2000 were taken in part to restructure operations at the
Transmission Systems group. 

Transmission Systems expects to achieve moderate sales growth in 2002, linked
to volume ramp-ups in recently launched applications as well as continued global
market share increases by key customers in Europe and Asia. This sales increase
is expected in spite of current concerns about North American automotive mar-
ket demand levels, which are likely to remain soft during the first half of the year.
The business should continue to benefit from restructuring actions taken in 2000
and 2001 to better align the businesses to the anticipated level of activity and
from significant cost reduction projects initiated in 2001 which will carry over into
the new year. 

Divested operations and businesses held for sale includes the results of Fuel
Systems, sold in 2001; the HVAC business, which was sold during 2000; and the
forged powder metal race business sold in 1999. These businesses did not fit our
strategic goals, and we believe our resources are better spent on our core tech-
nologies in highly engineered components and systems. The sale of the Fuel
Systems business did not result in a significant gain or loss. However, we adjusted
our carrying value of this business in 2000 as part of the restructuring charge
discussed below. The $5.4 million gain on the sale of the HVAC business in 2000
is included in equity in affiliates and other income. The sale of the forged powder
metal race business did not result in a significant gain or loss. Divested operations
and businesses held for sale contributed to sales of $18.0 million, $132.9 million,
and $178.0 million and EBIT of $(0.2) million, $3.2 million, and $6.9 million in
2001, 2000, and 1999, respectively. 

Corporate, including equity in affiliates was a $30.3 million charge in 2001,
compared to a $7.3 million charge in 2000, and a $10.1 million charge in 1999. This
amount represents headquarters expenses, equity in affiliates, and expenses not
assigned to individual segments. The main reasons for the increase in the charge
were a decrease of $10.5 million in the excess of earnings from pension assets
over the costs of the U.S. pension plans and the $5.4 million gain on the sale of the
HVAC business in 2000. Corporate headquarters expense was relatively unchanged
at $20.5 million in 2001 compared to $19.2 million in 2000.  

Our top ten customers accounted for approximately 78% of consolidated sales
compared to 77% in 2000 and 75% in 1999. Ford continues to be our largest

1999, with our sales declining as a result. Sales of other vehicles that use
TorqTransfer Systems’ products were also down in 2000, particularly other Ford
light trucks and SUVs. 

August 2000 saw the launch of TorqTransfer’s first InterActive Torque Management
(ITM) system application in the Acura MDX. While the system has great promise
going forward, it did not contribute significantly in 2000 due to the impact of start-
up costs and its launch late in the year. Considering the sales decline, the group
did a solid job of limiting EBIT losses. This was done by recognizing early that the
year would be one of limited growth potential and this business took a number
of actions to control costs, including restrictions on hiring, controls on non-essen-
tial spending and shifting production to maximize capacity utilization.

For 2002, this group expects to benefit from a new contract to supply transfer
cases to General Motors, as well as new business with Kia and Hyundai. In addition,
Honda has requested a significant uplift in volumes for the ITM torque manage-
ment device to be used in the Honda Pilot, a new SUV. We expect moderate
growth from this business next year because of these new product introductions.
Shipments against these new contracts should begin ramping up in the second
quarter, with more significant increases in the third quarter coinciding with the
2003 model year. 

Transmission Systems’ sales decreased 2.0%, but EBIT increased 5.4% in
2001. The sales reduction was linked to volume decreases experienced by major
North American OEMs, driven by the general North American automotive industry
downturn as well as market share losses by the North American automakers to
European and Asian automakers in North America. Strong sales to European and
Asian customers partially offset the North American OEM sales decline, due to
their aforementioned export gains as well as solid domestic volume levels in their
respective regions. Increased installation rates for automated transmissions con-
tinued to grow in Europe and Asia, nearly offsetting the decline in volume in North
America. Because of significant cost cutting efforts taken in late 2000 and early 2001,
this business was able to increase EBIT, even while sales decreased. This business
was quick to respond to the softening North American marketplace and took
costs out of its overhead structure to be more in line with current industry levels.

Compared to 1999, 2000 sales increased 5.8%. The sales growth came principally
from Korea, where this business benefited from both strong local build rates and
an increasing installation rate for automatic transmissions. In Europe, sales were
strong in local currency, but translated to fewer dollars because of the weakness
of the Euro. In North America sales were up for the year due to strong customer
build rates in the first half of 2000. Sales declined in the latter part of the year,

Morse TEC sales decreased by 1.9% and EBIT declined by 6.0%. The North
American automotive downturn affected this business, but was partially offset by
expanded applications, particularly for engine timing systems. The European portion
of the business continued to be strong, particularly turbochargers and engine timing
systems. However, the weakness in European currencies mitigated that strength.
Results for the business were also adversely impacted by the weakness throughout
the year in the Yen. The EBIT decline was due to the previously mentioned lower
volumes and a change in mix between chain products and turbocharger products.  

Morse TEC sales increased 11.2% and EBIT increased 16.1% from 1999 to 2000,
despite being negatively affected by the weak Euro, both for the turbocharger
portion and the timing chain portion of the business. The growth was due to the
strength of the European turbocharger market for gasoline and diesel passenger
cars and commercial vehicles, as well as new and expanded engine timing
programs in each geographical region.  

Morse TEC revenue is expected to grow in the coming years as turbocharger
capacity is increased to meet demand on direct-injected diesel passenger cars
and as new generations of turbochargers for commercial diesel applications are
introduced. The introduction of additional new products, including timing sys-
tems for Chrysler overhead cam engines, increased North American transplant
business, Ford’s global four cylinder engine program, and drive chain for the new
Toyota hybrid engine and other Japanese and Korean applications, are expected
in the coming years. This business expects to benefit from the continued con-
version of engine timing systems from belts to chains in both Europe and Japan.
Such growth may be tempered by the current downturn.

TorqTransfer Systems’ sales decreased 5.1% and EBIT decreased 35.2% from
the prior year. This business suffered particularly in the early part of the year from
the effects of erratic scheduling, with OEMs cutting volumes at short notice in
response to the market downturn and the continued effects of the Ford Explorer/
Firestone tire issue.

The EBIT decline caused primarily by the effects of the downturn was com-
pounded by the need to support the launch of new programs, discussed
below, which involved substantial engineering effort and the installation of
new manufacturing capacity.

Sales were down 6.5% and EBIT was down 9.7% in 2000 versus 1999. The
declines were not surprising given the weak second half of 2000 and the problems
with Ford Explorer/Firestone tires, as the Explorer is a major application for this
segment. Production volume of this vehicle was lower by 4% compared with

Air/Fluid Systems experienced a 16.4% decrease in sales and a 63.9% decrease
in EBIT compared to the prior year. The decline in sales was primarily due to pricing
and volume weakness at DaimlerChrysler, a major Air/Fluid Systems customer.
Volume decreases, product mix issues and production issues related to facility
rationalizations contributed to the EBIT margin decline.

Sales increased by 3.4% and EBIT decreased 2.2%, respectively, from 1999 to
2000. The increase in sales was largely attributable to increased demand for
pump products for emission control. The decline in EBIT was due to product mix
issues and costs related to facility rationalizations.

Despite a tempered outlook for 2002 due to industry conditions, we believe that
Air/Fluid Systems continues to provide opportunities for growth. We expect the
business to benefit from the trend in automatic transmissions to convert individual
solenoids to modules and “smart” modules with integrated transmission control
units. The business should also benefit from the trend toward non-conventional
automated transmissions. Other opportunities in the coming years include products
designated to improve fuel efficiency and reduce emissions as well as fluid pumps
for engine hydraulics supporting variable cam timing and engine lubrication. 

Cooling Systems’ sales decreased 21.6% and EBIT decreased 76.6% from the prior
year. Cooling Systems was heavily impacted by the deteriorating North American
market conditions since approximately 80% of the business’ sales are to customers
in North America, mainly in the sport utility (SUV), light, medium and heavy truck
markets. This performance was in line with our expectations due to weakness in
the North American heavy truck market, along with an application lost in 2001.

The increases in sales and EBIT in 2000 relative to 1999 primarily reflect full year
results for this business, which was formed in 1999.

We expect our leadership position to favorably impact results once new business
is launched and the truck markets recover, which we currently expect to happen
in 2003. Increasing fuel economy and environmental legislation in North America
and Europe are expected to drive demand for electronically controlled cooling
systems to accommodate increasingly higher operating engine temperatures.
These same requirements are driving developing countries to embrace mechan-
ically controlled drives and, because of our full product range and manufacturing
locations in every major vehicle producing region, we expect to be well positioned
to benefit from the product life cycle in these markets. 
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customer with 30% of consolidated sales in 2001, compared to 30% and 31% in
2000 and 1999, respectively. DaimlerChrysler, our second largest customer, rep-
resented 21% of consolidated sales in 2001 and 19% of consolidated sales in
both 2000 and 1999; and General Motors accounted for 12%, 13%, and 13%, in
2001, 2000, and 1999, respectively. No other customer accounted for more than
10% of consolidated sales in any of the periods presented.

Other Factors Affecting Results of Operations

The following table details our results of operations as a percentage of sales:

Year Ended December 31, 2001* 2000* 1999

Net sales 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Cost of sales 76.6 75.7 76.8

Gross margin 23.4 24.3 23.2

Depreciation and amortization 6.2 5.5 5.0

Selling, general and administrative expenses 10.0 9.2 8.3

Minority interest, affiliate earnings, net of tax
and other income (0.6) (0.8) (0.5) 

Earnings before interest and taxes 7.8% 10.4% 10.4%

*To make the table comparable across years, 2001 excludes $28.4 million, or 1.2% of sales, of
non-recurring charges, and 2000 excludes $62.9 million, or 2.4% of sales, of restructuring and
other non-recurring charges.

Gross margin for 2001 was 23.4%, a decrease from the 2000 margin of 24.3%,
but a slight increase from the 1999 margin of 23.2%. The decrease in margin in
2001 is mainly due to the drop in volume, as we had fewer sales dollars to cover
our fixed plant costs. The margin increase in 2000, compared to 1999 is partly
attributable to the acquisition of higher margin operations and the divestiture of
lower margin operations in 1999. In addition, many of our core businesses also
showed gross margin improvement. In 2001, the combination of price reductions
to customers and cost increases for material, labor and overhead totaled approx-
imately $37 million, as compared to $16 million and $63 million in 2000 and 1999,
respectively. We were able to partially offset these impacts by actively pursuing
reductions from our suppliers and making changes in product design and using
process technology to remove cost and/or improve manufacturing capabilities.

Depreciation and amortization as a percentage of sales was 6.2% in 2001 versus
5.5% in 2000 and 5.0% in 1999. The 2001 and 2000 amounts were a result of a
full year’s amortization of the goodwill associated with the additional businesses
acquired in 1999 as well as the relatively higher levels of capital spending in
recent years. The 2001 dollar amount was about the same as 2000; the higher
percentage of sales was due to a lower sales volume. 

Selling, general and administrative expenses (SG&A) as a percentage of sales
increased to 10.0% from 9.2% and 8.3% in 2000 and 1999, respectively. Lower
sales volumes, as well as our continued commitment to research and development
(R&D) in order to capitalize on growth opportunities have caused the increases.
R&D spending was $104.5 million, or 4.4% of sales, as compared with $112.0
million, or 4.2% of sales, and $91.6 million, or 3.7% of sales in 2001, 2000 and 1999,
respectively. We continue to invest in a number of cross-segment R&D programs,
as well as a number of other key programs, all of which are necessary for short
and long-term growth. We intend to maintain our commitment to R&D investment
in the coming years while continuing to focus on controlling other SG&A costs. 

Restructuring and other non-recurring charges included $28.4 million of non-
recurring charges which were incurred in the fourth quarter of 2001. These charges
primarily include adjustments to the carrying value of certain assets and liabilities
related to businesses acquired and disposed of over the past three years. Of the
$28.4 million of pretax charges, $5.0 million represents non-cash charges.
Approximately $3.3 million was spent in 2001, $8.4 million was transferred to
environmental reserves and the remaining $11.7 million is expected to be spent
over the next two years. The Company expects to fund the total cash outlay of
these actions with cash flow from operations.

Restructuring and other non-recurring charges totaling $62.9 million were
incurred in the second half of 2000 in response to deteriorating market conditions.
The charges included the rationalization and integration of certain businesses and
actions taken to bring costs in line with vehicle production slowdowns in major
customer product lines. Of the $62.9 million in pretax charges, $47.3 million repre-
sented non-cash charges. Approximately $4.4 million was spent in 2000 and the
remaining $11.2 million was spent in 2001. The actions taken as part of the 2000
restructuring charges are expected to generate approximately $19 million in
annualized savings, primarily from lower salaries and benefit costs and reduced
depreciation charges. These savings were more than offset by lower revenue
from the deterioration in the automotive and heavy truck markets. 
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Components of the restructuring and other non-recurring charges are detailed in
the following table and discussed further below.

(millions of dollars)

Severance Other Exit Costs
and Other Asset Loss on Sale and Non-Recurring

millions of dollars Benefits Write-downs of Business Charges Total

Provisions $ 8.9 $ 11.6 $ 35.2 $   7.2 $ 62.9
Incurred (4.3) — — (0.1) (4.4)
Non-cash write-offs — (11.6) (35.2) (0.5) (47.3)
Balance, 

December 31, 2000 4.6 —   —   6.6 11.2
Provisions — 5.0 — 23.4 28.4
Incurred (4.6) — — (18.3) (22.9)
Non-cash write-offs — (5.0) — — (5.0)

Balance, 
December 31, 2001 $ — $  — $    — $ 11.7 $ 11.7

Severance and other benefit costs relate to the reduction of approximately 220
employees from the workforce. The reductions affect each of our operating seg-
ments, apart from TorqTransfer Systems, across each of our geographical areas,
and across each major functional area, including production and selling and
administrative positions. As of December 31, 2001, approximately $8.9 million
had been paid for severance and other benefits for the terminated employees.

Asset write-downs primarily consist of the write-off of impaired assets that will
no longer be used in production as a result of the industry downturn and the con-
solidation of certain operations. Such assets have been taken or are in process of
being taken out of productive use and are being disposed.

Loss on anticipated sale of business is related to the Fuel Systems business,
which was sold in April 2001. Fuel Systems produced metal tanks for the heavy
truck market in North America and did not fit our strategic focus on powertrain
technology. In April 2000, we announced our intention to sell this non-core busi-
ness, which was acquired as part of the vehicle products business of Kuhlman
Corporation in March 1999. With the deterioration of the North American heavy
truck market in the second half of 2000, the value of this business had significantly
decreased, creating the $35.2 million pre-tax loss. In April 2001, the Company
completed the sale of its fuel systems business to an investor group led by TMB
Industries, a private equity group. Terms of the transaction did not have a significant
impact on the Company’s results of operations, financial condition or cash flows.

Other exit costs and non-recurring charges are primarily non-employee related
exit costs incurred to close certain non-production facilities the Company has pre-
viously sold or no longer needs and non-recurring product quality related charges.

The 2001 non-recurring charges include $8.4 million of environmental remediation
costs related to sold businesses and $12.0 million of product quality costs for
issues with products that were sold by acquired businesses prior to acquisition,
all of which have been fixed in the currently produced products.

Equity in affiliate earnings, net of tax and other income decreased by $6.8
million from 2000 and increased by $9.7 million between 2000 and 1999. The
2000 number included a gain on the sale of the HVAC business of $5.4 million.
The other part of the difference is a slight decrease in the results of our 50%
owned Japanese joint venture, NSK-Warner. Our equity in NSK-Warner’s earnings
of $15.7 million was $1.2 million lower than the prior year, which was $4.0 million
higher than 1999. NSK-Warner has continued to perform well since the 1998
economic downturn in the Asian economy.

Interest expense and finance charges decreased by $14.8 million in 2001 and
increased by $13.4 million between 2000 and 1999. The decrease in 2001 was due
to lower interest rates as well as lower debt levels, as the Company used cash gen-
erated in 2000 and 2001 to pay off debt. In 2001 the Company paid down $57.8
million of debt and reduced the amount of securitized accounts receivable sold by
$30.0 million. The Company took advantage of lower interest rates through the use
of an interest rate swap arrangement described more fully in Note Six to the
Consolidated Financial Statements. At the end of 2001, the amount of debt with
fixed interest rates was 63% of total debt, including the impact of the interest rate
swap. The increase in 2000 is consistent with higher debt levels required to finance
the two major acquisitions in 1999 and rising interest rates in the U.S. during 2000.
The rising interest rates in early 2000 did not have as significant an impact on inter-
est expense as might have been expected because in 2000, 73% of our debt had
fixed rates and only 27% had floating rates. Strong cash flows from operations and
proceeds from divestitures have been used to lower debt levels and partially offset
the impact of acquisitions on interest expense in 2000. 

The provision for income taxes results in an effective tax rate for 2001 of
37.4% compared with rates of 36.8% for 2000 and 36.1% for 1999. Our effective
tax rates have been lower than the standard federal and state tax rates due to the
realization of certain R&D and foreign tax credits; foreign rates, which differ from
those in the U.S.; and offset somewhat by non-deductible expenses, such as
goodwill. The increase in rates over the three years is due to the non-deductibility
of a portion of the goodwill associated with the Kuhlman acquisition, as well as
increased income from higher tax jurisdictions. The tax rates on the restructuring
and non-recurring charges also reflected a difference in the book and tax carrying
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Coleman Cable to a group of equity investors included debt securities with a face
value of $15.3 million. Proceeds from the sales were used to repay indebtedness.
In 2001, the sale agreement with Coleman Cable was finalized resulting in the
exchange of the debt securities, along with a purchase price adjustment receiv-
able, for $3.0 million in cash and a $2.0 million note due in 2002.

Acquis i t ion of  Eaton Corp. ’s  F lu id  Power Div is ion
Effective October 1, 1999, we acquired Eaton Corp.’s Fluid Power Division, one
of the world’s leading manufacturers of powertrain cooling solutions for the global
automotive industry, for $321.7 million. To partially finance the acquisition, we
issued $150 million of 8.0% senior unsecured notes maturing September 2019.
Cash from operations funded the remainder of the acquisition price. The Fluid
Power Division designed and produced a variety of fans and viscous fan drive cooling
systems primarily for passenger vehicles such as light trucks, sport-utility vehicles
and vans. Along with the commercial cooling systems business acquired from
Kuhlman in March 1999, this acquisition positions us to globalize modular cooling
systems integration opportunities across a full range of vehicle types.

Envi ronmenta l /Other  Commitments and Cont ingencies
Environmental The Company and certain of its current and former direct and
indirect corporate predecessors, subsidiaries and divisions have been identified
by the United States Environmental Protection Agency and certain state environ-
mental agencies and private parties as potentially responsible parties (PRPs) at
various hazardous waste disposal sites under the Comprehensive Environmental
Response, Compensation and Liability Act (Superfund) and equivalent state laws
and, as such, may presently be liable for the cost of clean-up and other remedial
activities at 43 such sites. Responsibility for clean-up and other remedial activities
at a Superfund site is typically shared among PRPs based on an allocation formula.

Based on information available to the Company, which in most cases, includes:
an estimate of allocation of liability among PRPs; the probability that other PRPs,
many of whom are large, solvent public companies, will fully pay the cost appor-
tioned to them; currently available information from PRPs and/or federal or state
environmental agencies concerning the scope of contamination and estimated
remediation costs; remediation alternatives; estimated legal fees; and other factors,
the Company has established a reserve for indicated environmental liabilities with
a balance at December 31, 2001 of approximately $25.5 million. The Company
expects this amount to be expended over the next three to five years.

BorgWarner believes that none of these matters, individually or in the aggregate,
will have a material adverse effect on its financial condition or future operating

results, generally either because estimates of the maximum potential liability at a
site are not large or because liability will be shared with other PRPs, although no
assurance can be given with respect to the ultimate outcome of any such matter.

In connection with the sale of Kuhlman Electric Corporation, the Company agreed
to indemnify the buyer and Kuhlman Electric for certain environmental liabilities
relating to the past operations of Kuhlman Electric. During 2000, Kuhlman Electric
notified the Company that it discovered potential environmental contamination at
its Crystals Springs, Mississippi plant while undertaking an expansion of the plant.

The Company has been working with the Mississippi Department of Environmental
Quality and Kuhlman Electric to investigate the extent of the contamination. The inves-
tigation has revealed the presence of PCBs in portions of the soil at the plant and
neighboring areas. In mid-2001, Kuhlman Electric and others, including the Company,
were sued by twenty-six plaintiffs in several lawsuits, which claim personal and
property damage. The Company has moved to be dismissed from these lawsuits.

The Company has filed a lawsuit against Kuhlman Electric seeking a declaration of
the scope of the Company’s contractual indemnity. The Company believes that
the reserve for environmental liabilities is sufficient to cover any potential liability
associated with this matter.

Other Commitments and Contingencies In support of a new product that will be
launched in 2002, a third party has purchased $22.7 million of fixed assets. Upon
launch of the new product, the Company intends to lease these assets under an
operating lease.

New Account ing Pronouncements
On January 1, 2001, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (SFAS) No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities,” as amended. This statement standardizes the accounting for derivative
instruments by requiring that an entity recognize all derivatives as assets or liabilities
in the statement of financial position and measure them at fair value. When certain
criteria are met, it also provides for matching the timing of gain or loss recognition on
the derivative hedging instrument with the recognition of (a) the changes in the fair
value or cash flows of the hedged asset or liability attributable to the hedged risk or
(b) the earnings effect of the hedged forecasted transaction. The Company has a
small number of derivative instruments. Application of SFAS No. 133 had an imma-
terial impact on the Company’s results of operations and financial condition. 

On April 1, 2001, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 140, “Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and
Extinguishments of Liabilities.” The adoption of this statement has not had and is
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values of certain assets that were written down. For 2002, as a result of certain
changes in the Company’s legal structure, the Company anticipates realizing a
3% to 4% improvement in its effective tax rate.

Financial Condition and Liquidity

Our cash and cash equivalents increased $11.5 million at December 31, 2001
compared with December 31, 2000. Net cash provided by operating activities of
$195.8 million, along with proceeds from businesses sold of $14.4 million were
primarily used to fund $140.9 million of capital expenditures, repay $57.8 million
of long-term debt, and distribute $15.8 million of dividends to our shareholders. 

Operating cash flow of $195.8 million is $95.7 million less than in 2000. The
$195.8 million consists of $66.4 million of net earnings, non-cash charges of
$111.5 million and a $17.9 million decrease in net operating assets and liabilities,
net of the effects of divestitures. Non-cash charges are primarily comprised of
$104.2 million in depreciation, $42.0 million of goodwill amortization, and the $5.0
million non-cash portion of the restructuring and other non-recurring charges
recorded in 2001. Accounts Receivable increased $48.6 million, net of receivables
related to divested businesses, in 2001. However, $30.0 million of the increase
was due to the reduction in securitized accounts receivable sold.

Net cash used in investing activities totaled $123.3 million, compared with $62.0
million in the prior year. Capital spending totaling $140.9 million in 2001 was $26.2
million lower than in 2000, although at a similar level in terms of spending as a
percentage of sales. Approximately 60% of the 2001 spending was related to
expansion, with the remainder for cost reduction and other purposes. The prior
year included $88.9 million in net proceeds from the sales of businesses, mainly
non-strategic portions of our 1999 acquisitions. There were $14.4 million in sale
proceeds in 2001. Heading into 2002, we plan to manage through the continuing
industry downturn using a program of controlled capital spending, although full
year spending should still be approximately 4.5% to 5.5% of sales.

Stockholders’ equity increased by $17.1 million in 2001. Net income of $66.4 million
was partially offset by adjustments for minimum pension liability of $18.7 million,
currency translation adjustments of $18.4 million, dividends of $15.8 million, and
$0.7 million to repurchase shares of treasury stock. In relation to the dollar, the
currencies in foreign countries where we conduct business, particularly the
Euro and Yen, weakened, causing the currency translation component of other
comprehensive income to decrease in 2001. 

Our total capitalization as of December 31, 2001 of $1,841.2 million is comprised of
short-term debt of $35.6 million, long-term debt of $701.4 million and shareholders’
equity of $1,104.2 million. Capitalization at December 31, 2000 was $1,881.9 million.
During the year, we reduced our balance sheet debt to capital ratio to 40.0% from
42.2% in 2000 and 48.1% in 1999. We have also been able to maintain our invest-
ment grade credit ratings from Moody’s (Baa2) and Standard and Poor’s (BBB+).

We have a $350 million revolving credit facility that extends until July 21, 2005. We
also have $300 million available under a shelf registration statement on file with
the Securities and Exchange Commission through which a variety of debt and/or
equity instruments may be issued.

We believe that the combination of cash from operations and available credit facil-
ities will be sufficient to satisfy our cash needs for our current level of operations
and our planned operations for the foreseeable future. We will continue to balance
our needs for internal growth, debt reduction and share repurchase.

Other Matters

Acquis i t ion of  Kuhlman Corporat ion

On March 1, 1999, we acquired all the outstanding shares of common stock of
Kuhlman Corporation (Kuhlman), for a purchase price of $693.0 million. We also
assumed $131.6 million of Kuhlman’s existing indebtedness, which we subse-
quently refinanced. We funded the transaction by issuing 3,287,127 shares of
BorgWarner Inc. common stock with a value of $149.8 million, and by borrowing
approximately $543.2 million.

Kuhlman was a diversified industrial manufacturing company that operated in
two product segments: vehicle and electrical products. In vehicle products,
Kuhlman’s Schwitzer and Kysor units were leading worldwide manufacturers of
proprietary engine components, including turbochargers, fans and fan drives and
other products. Their results since the date of the acquisition are included in the
Consolidated Financial Statements. 

The electrical products businesses acquired from Kuhlman consisted of Kuhlman
Electric and Coleman Cable. These products did not fit our strategic direction and, at the
time of the Kuhlman acquisition, we announced our intention to sell the businesses.

In 1999, we completed the sales of both Kuhlman Electric and Coleman Cable.
Kuhlman Electric was sold to Carlyle Group, L.L.C. for $120.1 million, including
debt securities with a face value of $15.0 million. The $137.3 million sale of
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not expected to have a material effect on the Company’s results of operations,
financial condition or cash flows. Further disclosure may be found in the Accounts
Receivable section of Note One to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

In July 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued SFAS No. 141
“Business Combinations” and SFAS No. 142 “Goodwill and Other Intangible
Assets.” SFAS No. 141 requires that all business combinations completed after
June 30, 2001 be accounted for under the purchase method only and that certain
acquired intangible assets in a business combination be recognized as assets
apart from goodwill. There are also transition provisions that apply to business
combinations completed before July 1, 2001, that were accounted for by the pur-
chase method. SFAS No. 142, effective January 1, 2002, specifies that goodwill
and certain intangible assets will no longer be amortized but instead will be sub-
ject to periodic impairment testing.

The Company is currently assessing the impact that adoption of SFAS No. 142
will have on its financial position and results of operations. As of December 31,
2001, the Company had goodwill, net of accumulated amortization, of approxi-
mately $1,160.6 million, which will be subject to the transitional assessment
provisions of SFAS No. 142. Amortization expense related to goodwill was $42.0
million and $43.3 million for 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Qual i tat ive and Quant i tat ive Disc losure About  Market  R isk
BorgWarner’s primary market risks include fluctuations in interest rates and foreign
currency exchange rates. We are also affected by changes in the prices of com-
modities used in our manufacturing operations. Some of our commodity purchase
price risk is covered by supply agreements with customers and suppliers. Other
commodity purchase price risk is not considered to be material. We do not enter
into any derivative instruments for purposes other than hedging a specific risk.

We have established policies and procedures to manage sensitivity to interest
rate and foreign currency exchange rate market risk, which include monitoring
the level of exposure to each market risk.

Interest rate risk is the risk that we will incur economic losses due to adverse
changes in interest rates. Our earnings exposure related to adverse movements
in interest rates is primarily derived from outstanding floating rate debt instru-
ments that are indexed to floating money market rates. A ten percent increase or
decrease in the average cost of our variable rate debt would result in a change in
pre-tax interest expense of approximately $0.8 million. 

We also measure interest rate risk by estimating the net amount by which the
fair value of all of our interest rate sensitive assets and liabilities would be

impacted by selected hypothetical changes in market interest rates. Fair value is
estimated using a discount cash flow analysis. Assuming a hypothetical instan-
taneous 10% change in interest rates as of December 31, 2001, the net fair value
of these instruments would increase by approximately $35.3 million if interest
rates decreased and would decrease by approximately $31.6 million if interest
rates increased. Our interest rate sensitivity analysis assumes a parallel shift in
interest rate yield curves. The model, therefore, does not reflect the potential
impact of changes in the relationship between short-term and long-term interest
rates. Interest rate sensitivity at December 31, 2000, measured in a similar manner,
was slightly greater than at December 31, 2001.

Foreign currency risk is the risk that we will incur economic losses due to adverse
changes in foreign currency exchange rates. We mitigate our foreign currency
exchange rate risk principally by establishing local production facilities in markets
we serve, by invoicing customers in the same currency as the source of the products
and by funding some of our investments in foreign markets through local
currency loans. Such non-U.S. dollar debt was $116.3 million as of December 31,
2001 and $122.4 million as of December 31, 2000. We also monitor our foreign
currency exposure in each country and implement strategies to respond to
changing economic and political environments. In addition, the Company period-
ically enters into forward contracts in order to reduce exposure to exchange rate
risk related to transactions denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency. In the aggregate, our exposure related to such transactions is not material
to our financial position, results of operations or cash flows in both 2001 and 2000.

Disclosure Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

Statements contained in this Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations may contain forward-looking statements as
contemplated by the 1995 Private Securities Litigation Reform Act that are based on
management’s current expectations, estimates and projections. Words such as
“expects,” “anticipates,” “intends,” “plans,” “believes,” “estimates,” variations of
such words and similar expressions are intended to identify such forward-looking
statements. Forward-looking statements are subject to risks and uncertainties,
which could cause actual results to differ materially from those projected or implied
in the forward-looking statements. Such risks and uncertainties include: fluctuations
in domestic or foreign automotive production, the continued use of outside suppli-
ers, fluctuations in demand for vehicles containing BorgWarner products, general
economic conditions, as well as other risks detailed in the Company’s filings with
the Securities and Exchange Commission, including the Cautionary Statements
filed as Exhibit 99.1 to the Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2001.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The information in this report is the responsibility of management. BorgWarner Inc.
and Consolidated Subsidiaries (the “Company”) has in place reporting guidelines and
policies designed to ensure that the statements and other information contained in
this report present a fair and accurate financial picture of the Company. In fulfilling this
management responsibility, we make informed judgments and estimates conform-
ing with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been audited by
Deloitte & Touche LLP, independent auditors. Management has made available
all the Company’s financial records and related information deemed necessary by
Deloitte & Touche LLP. Furthermore, management believes that all representations
made by it to Deloitte & Touche LLP during its audit were valid and appropriate.

Management is responsible for maintaining a comprehensive system of internal
control through its operations that provides reasonable assurance that assets are
protected from improper use, that material errors are prevented or detected within
a timely period and that records are sufficient to produce reliable financial reports.
The system of internal control is supported by written policies and procedures
that are updated by management as necessary. The system is reviewed and eval-
uated regularly by the Company’s internal auditors as well as by the independent
auditors in connection with their annual audit of the financial statements. The
independent auditors conduct their evaluation in accordance with auditing stan-
dards generally accepted in the United States of America and perform such tests
of transactions and balances as they deem necessary. Management considers
the recommendations of its internal auditors and independent auditors concerning
the Company’s system of internal control and takes the necessary actions that are
cost-effective in the circumstances. Management believes that, as of December 31,
2001, the Company’s system of internal control was adequate to accomplish the
objectives set forth in the first sentence of this paragraph.

The Company’s Finance and Audit Committee, composed entirely of directors of
the Company who are not employees, meets periodically with the Company’s
management and independent auditors to review financial results and procedures,
internal financial controls and internal and external audit plans and recommenda-
tions. In carrying out these responsibilities, the Finance and Audit Committee and
the independent auditors have unrestricted access to each other with or without
the presence of management representatives.

John F. Fiedler George E. Strickler
Chairman and Executive Vice President 
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer

February 7, 2002 

To The Board of Directors and Stockholders of BorgWarner Inc.: 

We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of BorgWarner Inc. and
Consolidated Subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2001 and 2000,
and the related consolidated statements of operations, cash flows, and stock-
holders’ equity for each of the three years in the period ended December 31,
2001. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s man-
agement. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and per-
form the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes exam-
ining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of BorgWarner Inc. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
at December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the results of their operations and their
cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2001
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.

DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Chicago, Illinois
February 7, 2002
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Consolidated Statements of Operations

(millions of dollars, except per share amounts)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2001 2000 1999

Net sales $2,351.6 $2,645.9 $2,458.6

Cost of sales 1,802.0 2,003.1 1,888.5

Depreciation 104.2 102.2 91.3

Selling, general and administrative expenses 234.3 244.1 203.3

Minority interest 3.8 2.7 1.3

Goodwill amortization 42.0 43.3 32.1

Restructuring and other non-recurring charges 28.4 62.9 —

Equity in affiliate earnings, net of tax and other income (17.0) (23.8) (14.1)

Earnings before interest expense, finance charges and income taxes 153.9 211.4 256.2

Interest expense and finance charges 47.8 62.6 49.2

Earnings before income taxes 106.1 148.8 207.0

Provision for income taxes 39.7 54.8 74.7

Net earnings $  66.4 $ 94.0 $ 132.3

Net earnings per share

Basic $ 2.52 $ 3.56 $ 5.10

Diluted $ 2.51 $ 3.54 $ 5.07

Average shares outstanding (thousands)

Basic 26,315 26,391 25,948

Diluted 26,463 26,487 26,078

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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BorgWarner Inc. and Consolidated Subsidiaries

BorgWarner 2001

Consolidated Balance Sheets

(millions of dollars)

December 31, 2001 2000

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 32.9 $ 21.4 
Receivables 203.7 168.9
Inventories 143.8 161.6 
Deferred income taxes 23.6 1.7
Prepayments and other current assets 37.3 57.0

Total current assets 441.3 410.6
Land 29.6 30.0 
Buildings 246.1 239.1
Machinery and equipment 940.9 906.9
Capital leases 2.7 5.1
Construction in progress 128.4 98.2

1,347.7 1,279.3
Less accumulated depreciation 509.5 472.1

Net property, plant and equipment 838.2 807.2
Investments and advances 137.4 142.7 
Goodwill 1,160.6 1,203.1
Deferred income taxes 5.7 23.1
Other noncurrent assets 187.7 152.9

Total other assets 1,491.4 1,521.8
Total assets $2,770.9 $2,739.6

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

Notes payable $  35.6 $ 54.4 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 410.6 408.2 
Income taxes payable 8.8 21.8

Total current liabilities 455.0 484.4
Long-term debt 701.4 740.4
Long-term liabilities:

Retirement-related liabilities 393.0 345.2
Other 105.9 72.2

Total long-term liabilities 498.9 417.4
Minority interest in consolidated subsidiaries 11.4 10.3
Commitments and contingencies
Capital stock:

Preferred stock, $.01 par value; authorized shares: 5,000,000; none issued — — 
Common stock, $.01 par value; authorized shares: 50,000,000; issued shares: 2001, 27,039,968 

and 2000, 27,040,492; outstanding shares: 2001, 26,365,169; 2000, 26,225,283 0.3 0.3 
Non-voting common stock, $.01 par value; authorized shares: 25,000,000; none issued and outstanding — —

Capital in excess of par value 715.7 715.7 
Retained earnings 470.9 422.9
Management shareholder notes (2.0) (2.5)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (53.1) (16.0)
Common stock held in treasury, at cost: 2001, 674,799 shares; 2000, 815,209 shares (27.6) (33.3)

Total stockholders’ equity 1,104.2 1,087.1
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $2,770.9 $2,739.6 

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
BorgWarner Inc. and Consolidated Subsidiaries

BorgWarner 2001

(millions of dollars)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2001 2000 1999

Operating

Net earnings $   66.4 $   94.0 $ 132.3
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cash flows from operations: 
Non-cash charges (credits) to operations:

Depreciation 104.2 102.2 91.3
Goodwill amortization 42.0 43.3 32.1
Non-cash restructuring and other non-recurring charges 5.0 47.3 —
Deferred income tax provision 3.1 (8.5) (4.0)
Other, principally equity in affiliate earnings, net of tax (42.8) (21.3) (14.1)

Net earnings adjusted for non-cash charges 177.9 257.0 237.6 
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effects of acquisitions and divestitures:

(Increase) decrease in receivables (48.6) 18.6 41.1 
(Increase) decrease in inventories 10.1 (14.7) (19.0)
Decrease in prepayments and deferred income taxes 0.1 11.6 0.2
Increase in accounts payable and accrued expenses 23.0 7.0 57.9
Increase (decrease) in income taxes payable (12.7) (25.9) 18.9
Net change in other long-term assets and liabilities 46.0 37.9 7.8 

Net cash provided by operating activities 195.8 291.5 344.5 
Investing

Capital expenditures (140.9) (167.1) (143.4)
Net proceeds from asset disposals 6.5 16.2 10.3
Proceeds from sale of businesses 14.4 131.9 177.9
Payments for taxes on businesses sold — (43.0) —
Payments for businesses acquired, net of cash acquired (3.3) — (855.5)  

Net cash used in investing activities (123.3) (62.0) (810.7)
Financing

Net decrease in notes payable (16.5) (74.5) (10.3) 
Additions to long-term debt 34.0 86.9 621.8
Reductions in long-term debt (64.3) (192.3) (150.0)
Payments for purchase of treasury stock (0.7) (22.1) —
Proceeds from stock options exercised 2.8 1.1 0.7
Dividends paid (15.8) (15.9) (15.5)

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (60.5) (216.8) 446.7
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (0.5) (13.0) (2.8) 
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 11.5 (0.3) (22.3)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 21.4 21.7 44.0 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $   32.9 $   21.4 $ 21.7 
Supplemental Cash Flow Information

Net cash paid during the year for:
Interest $   50.2 $   65.4 $ 51.1
Income taxes 28.1 107.7 59.1

Non-cash financing transactions:
Issuance of common stock for acquisition $      — $      — $ 149.8
Issuance of common stock for management notes — 0.5 —
Issuance of common stock for Executive Stock Performance Plan 1.0 0.8 1.1

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity

(millions of dollars)

Number of Shares Stockholders’ Equity 
Comprehensive

Accumulated

Income

Issued Common Issued Capital in Management other
common stock in common excess of Treasury shareholder Retained comprehensive

stock treasury stock par value stock notes earnings income

Balance, January 1, 1999 23,753,365 (366,192) $ 0.2 $566.0 $(17.6) $(2.0) $230.2 $ 0.5 $108.2

Dividends declared — — — — — — (15.5) — —

Shares issued for Kuhlman Acquisition 3,287,127 — 0.1 149.7 — — — — —

Shares issued under stock option plans — 28,000 — — 1.3 — (0.6) — —

Shares issued under executive stock plan — 21,892 — — 1.1 — — — —

Net income — — — — — —  132.3 — $132.3

Adjustment for minimum pension liability — — — — — — — (0.1) (0.1)

Currency translation adjustment — — — — — — — 11.9 11.9

Balance, December 31, 1999 27,040,492 (316,300) $ 0.3 $715.7 $(15.2) $(2.0) $346.4 $ 12.3 $144.1

Purchase of treasury stock — (589,700) — — (22.1) — — — —

Dividends declared — — — — — — (15.9) — —

Shares issued for management shareholder note — 15,223 — — 0.7 (0.5) (0.2) — —

Shares issued under stock option plans — 53,750 — — 2.2 — (1.1) — —

Shares issued under executive stock plan — 21,818 — — 1.1 — (0.3) — —

Net income — — — — — —  94.0 — $  94.0

Adjustment for minimum pension liability — — — — — — — (0.1) (0.1)

Currency translation adjustment — — — — — — — (28.2) (28.2)

Balance, December 31, 2000 27,040,492 (815,209) $ 0.3 $715.7 $(33.3) $(2.5) $422.9 $(16.0) $  65.7

Purchase of treasury stock — (15,000) — — (0.7) — — — —

Dividends declared — — — — — — (15.8) — —

Management shareholder notes — — — — — 0.5 — — —

Shares issued under stock option plans — 129,550 — — 5.3 — (2.5) — —

Shares issued under executive stock plan — 25,860 — — 1.1 — (0.1) — —

Kuhlman shares retired (524) — — — — —  — — —

Net income — — — — — —  66.4 — 66.4

Adjustment for minimum pension liability — — — — — — — (18.7) (18.7)

Currency translation adjustment — — — — — — — (18.4) (18.4)

Balance, December 31, 2001 27,039,968 (674,799) $ 0.3 $715.7 $(27.6) $(2.0) $470.9 $(53.1) $  29.3

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Introduction

BorgWarner Inc. and Consolidated Subsidiaries (the “Company”) is a leading
global supplier of highly engineered systems and components primarily for auto-
motive powertrain applications. These products are manufactured and sold
worldwide, primarily to original equipment manufacturers of passenger cars,
sport utility vehicles, trucks, commercial transportation products and industrial
equipment. Its products fall into five operating segments: Air/Fluid Systems,
Cooling Systems, Morse TEC, TorqTransfer Systems and Transmission Systems.

1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The following paragraphs briefly describe significant accounting policies. 

Use of estimates The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires
management to make estimates and assumptions. These estimates and
assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Principles of consolidation The consolidated financial statements include all
significant majority-owned subsidiaries. All significant intercompany accounts
and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. Certain prior amounts
have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation.

Cash and cash equivalents Cash and cash equivalents are valued at cost, which
approximates market. It is the Company’s policy to classify investments with
original maturities of three months or less as cash and cash equivalents.

Accounts receivable The Company securitizes and sells certain receivables
through third-party financial institutions without recourse. The amount sold can
vary each month based on the amount of underlying receivables, up to a max-
imum of $150 million. During the year ended December 31, 2001, total cash
proceeds from sales of accounts receivable were $1,706.8 million, and the
amount of receivables sold each month ranged from $120 to $150 million. While
there are no gains or losses booked as a result of these transactions, the Company
is charged fees which are recorded at the time receivables are sold. At December 31,
2001, the Company had sold $120 million of receivables under a $153 million
Receivables Transfer Agreement for face value without recourse. At December 31,
2000, the amount sold was $150 million.

On April 1, 2001, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 140, “Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and
Extinguishments of Liabilities.” The adoption of this statement has not had a mate-
rial effect on the Company’s results of operations, financial condition, or cash flows.

Inventories Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market. Cost of U.S.
inventories is determined by the last-in, first-out (LIFO) method, while the foreign
operations use the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. Inventories held by U.S. oper-
ations was $81.1 million in 2001 and $92.4 million in 2000. Such inventories, if
valued at current cost instead of LIFO, would have been greater by $3.9 million
and $5.1 million, respectively.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation Property, plant and equip-
ment are valued at cost less accumulated depreciation. Expenditures for mainte-
nance, repairs and renewals of relatively minor items are generally charged to
expense as incurred. Renewals of significant items are capitalized. Depreciation
is computed generally on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
related assets ranging from 3 to 30 years. For income tax purposes, accelerated
methods of depreciation are generally used.  

Goodwill Goodwill is being amortized on a straight-line basis over periods not
exceeding 40 years. The Company periodically evaluates the carrying value of
goodwill to determine if adjustment to the amortization period or to the unamortized
balance is warranted.

Revenue recognition The Company recognizes revenue upon shipment of
product. Although the Company may enter into long-term supply agreements
with its major customers, each shipment of goods is treated as a separate sale
and the price is not fixed over the life of the agreements.

Financial instruments Financial instruments consist primarily of investments in
cash and cash equivalents, receivables and debt securities and obligations under
accounts payable, accrued expenses and debt instruments. The Company believes
that the fair value of the financial instruments approximates the carrying value,
except as noted in Note Six.  

The Company received corporate bonds with a face value of $30.3 million as
partial consideration for the sales of Kuhlman Electric and Coleman Cable in
1999. These bonds were recorded at their fair market value of $12.9 million using
valuation techniques that considered cash flows discounted at current market

rates and management’s best estimates of credit quality. In 2001, the sale agree-
ment with Coleman Cable was finalized, resulting in the exchange of the corporate
bonds along with a purchase price receivable, for $3 million in cash and a $2 million
note due in 2002. The fair value of these instruments was estimated to be $10.9
million at December 31, 2001 and $12.9 million at December 31, 2000. They have
been classified as investments available-for-sale in the other current assets section
of the December 31, 2001 and 2000 Consolidated Balance Sheets. The contractual
maturity of the Kuhlman Electric related bond is beyond five years.

Foreign currency The financial statements of foreign subsidiaries are translated
to U.S. dollars using the period-end exchange rate for assets and liabilities and an
average exchange rate for each period for revenues and expenses. The local
currency is the functional currency for substantially all the Company’s foreign
subsidiaries. Translation adjustments for foreign subsidiaries are recorded as a
component of accumulated other comprehensive income in stockholders’ equity.

Derivative financial instruments The Company recognizes that certain normal
business transactions generate risk. Examples of risks include exposure to
exchange rate risk related to transactions denominated in currencies other than
the functional currency, changes in cost of major raw materials, and changes in
interest rates. It is the objective and responsibility of the Company to assess the
impact of these transaction risks, and offer protection from selected risks through
various methods including financial derivatives. All derivative instruments held by
the Company are designated as hedges, have high correlation with the under-
lying exposure and are highly effective in offsetting underlying price movements.
Accordingly, gains and losses from changes in derivative fair values are deferred
until the underlying transaction occurs. The Company does not enter into any
derivative instruments for purposes other than hedging specific risk.

On January 1, 2001, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (SFAS) No. 133, "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities," as amended. This statement standardizes the accounting for deriva-
tive instruments by requiring that an entity recognize all derivatives as assets or
liabilities in the statement of financial position and measure them at fair value.
When certain criteria are met, it also provides for matching the timing of gain or
loss recognition on the derivative hedging instrument with the recognition of (a) the
changes in the fair value or cash flows of the hedged asset or liability attributable
to the hedged risk or (b) the earnings effect of the hedged forecasted transaction.
Application of SFAS 133 had an immaterial impact on the Company’s results of
operations and financial condition.

New accounting pronouncements In July 2001, the Financial Accounting
Standards Board issued SFAS No. 141 “Business Combinations” and SFAS No.
142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” SFAS 141 requires that all business
combinations completed after June 30, 2001 be accounted for under the purchase
method only and that certain acquired intangible assets in a business combination
be recognized as assets apart from goodwill. There are also transition provisions
that apply to business combinations completed before July 1, 2001, that were
accounted for by the purchase method. SFAS No. 142, effective January 1, 2002,
specifies that goodwill and certain intangible assets will no longer be amortized
but instead will be subject to periodic impairment testing.

The Company is currently assessing the impact that adoption of SFAS No. 142
will have on its financial position and results of operations. As of December 31,
2001, the Company had goodwill, net of accumulated amortization, of approxi-
mately $1,160.6 million, which will be subject to the transitional assessment
provisions of SFAS No. 142. Amortization expense related to goodwill was $42.0
million and $43.3 million in 2001 and 2000, respectively.

2 Research and Development Costs

The Company spent approximately $104.5 million, $112.0 million and $91.6 million
in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively, on research and development (R&D) activities.
Not included in these amounts were customer-sponsored R&D activities of
approximately $20.0 million, $12.5 million and $9.4 million in 2001, 2000 and
1999, respectively.

3 Equity in Affiliate Earnings, Net of Tax and Other Income

Items included in equity in affiliate earnings, net of tax and other income consist of:

(millions of dollars)

Year Ended December 31, 2001 2000 1999

Equity in affiliate earnings, net of tax $14.9 $15.7 $11.7

Gain on sale of business — 5.4 —

Interest income 1.4 0.8 1.1 

Gain (loss) on asset disposals, net (0.2) (0.4) 0.3

Other 0.9 2.3 1.0 

Total equity in affiliate earnings, net of tax
and other income $17.0 $23.8 $14.1

BorgWarner Inc. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
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5 Balance Sheet Information

Detailed balance sheet data are as follows:

(millions of dollars)

December 31, 2001 2000

Receivables:

Customers $170.5 $136.6

Other 37.1 37.5

207.6 174.1

Less allowance for losses 3.9 5.2

Net receivables $203.7 $168.9

Inventories: 

Raw material $ 69.7 $ 73.1

Work in progress 41.5 42.0

Finished goods 32.6 46.5

Total inventories $143.8 $161.6

Prepayments and other current assets:

Investment in businesses held for sale $  12.2 $ 31.7

Other 25.1 25.3

Total prepayments and other current assets $  37.3 $ 57.0

Investments and advances:

NSK-Warner $128.8 $140.9

Other 8.6 1.8

Total investments and advances $137.4 $142.7

Other noncurrent assets:

Deferred pension assets $ 83.4 $ 66.5

Deferred tooling 84.1 65.1

Other 20.2 21.3

Total other noncurrent assets $187.7 $152.9

Accounts payable and accrued expenses:

Trade payables $236.7 $230.1

Payroll and related 42.1 53.9

Insurance 20.7 22.7

Warranties and claims 17.1 16.1

Restructuring and other non-recurring charges 11.7 11.2

Other 82.3 74.2

Total accounts payable and accrued expenses $410.6 $408.2

Other long-term liabilities:

Environmental reserves $ 25.5 $ 20.7

Other 80.4 51.5

Total other long-term liabilities $105.9 $ 72.2

Dividends and other payments received from affiliates accounted for under the
equity method totaled $8.9 million in 2001, $25.5 million in 2000 and $5.5 million
in 1999.

Accumulated amortization of goodwill amounted to $228.4 million in 2001 and
$187.6 million in 2000.

The Company has a 50% interest in NSK-Warner, a joint venture based in Japan
that manufactures automatic transmission components. The Company’s share
of the earnings or losses reported by NSK-Warner is accounted for using the
equity method of accounting. NSK-Warner has a fiscal year-end of March 31.
The Company’s equity in the earnings of NSK-Warner consists of the 12 months
ended November 30 so as to reflect earnings on as current a basis as is
reasonably feasible.

Following are summarized financial data for NSK-Warner, translated using the
ending or periodic rates as of and for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2001,
2000 and 1999:

(millions of dollars)

2001 2000 1999

Balance sheets: 

Current assets $147.6 $196.0 $143.8

Noncurrent assets 151.7 157.8 137.4

Current liabilities 94.3 96.2 69.9

Noncurrent liabilities 5.5 8.5 6.9

Statements of operations:

Net sales $333.6 $303.8 $235.9

Gross profit 72.8 64.7 52.6

Net income 29.6 27.7 16.9

The debt as of March 31, 2001, was $8.3 million and the equity was $196.7 million.
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The analysis of the variance of income taxes as reported from income taxes
computed at the U.S. statutory rate for consolidated operations is as follows: 

(millions of dollars)

2001 2000 1999

Income taxes at U.S. statutory rate of 35% $37.1 $52.0 $72.5

Increases (decreases) resulting from: 

Income from non-U.S. sources (0.1) (0.3) (5.4) 

State taxes, net of federal benefit 1.4 7.5 4.9 

Business tax credits, net (7.2) (10.3) (8.4)

Affiliate earnings (5.2) (5.5) (4.1)

Nontemporary differences and other 13.7 11.4 15.2

Income taxes as reported $39.7 $54.8 $74.7

Following are the gross components of deferred tax assets and liabilities as of
December 31, 2001 and 2000: (millions of dollars)

2001 2000

Deferred tax assets – current:
Capital loss carryover $ 22.2 $   — 
Accrued costs related to divested operations 1.4 1.7 

Net deferred tax asset – current $ 23.6 $    1.7 
Deferred tax assets – noncurrent:

Postretirement benefits $116.2 $126.7 
Pension 18.6 2.9 
Other long-term liabilities and reserves 29.6 29.5 
Foreign tax credits — 2.5 
Valuation allowance — (2.5)
Other 20.6 44.8 

185.0 203.9 
Deferred tax liabilities – noncurrent:

Fixed assets 98.0 83.7 
Pension 32.3 25.2 
Goodwill 15.7 10.6 
Other 33.3 61.3 

179.3 180.8 
Net deferred tax asset – noncurrent $    5.7 $  23.1 

No deferred income taxes have been provided on undistributed earnings of foreign
subsidiaries totalling $47.8 million, as the amounts are essentially permanent in
nature. Any such potential liability would be substantially offset by foreign tax
credits with respect to such undistributed foreign earnings. The capital loss carry-
over relates to the sales of businesses acquired in the Kuhlman acquisition.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

4 Income Taxes

Income before taxes and provision for taxes consist of:
(millions of dollars)

2001 2000 1999

U.S. Non-U.S. Total U.S. Non-U.S. Total U.S. Non-U.S. Total

Income before taxes $19.5 $86.6 $106.1 $72.1 $76.7 $148.8 $121.6 $85.4 $207.0

Income taxes: 

Current :

Federal/foreign $  9.8 $24.7 $  34.5 $26.8 $24.9 $  51.7 $  50.0 $21.2 $  71.2

State 2.1 — 2.1 11.6 — 11.6 7.5 — 7.5 

11.9 24.7 36.6 38.4 24.9 63.3 57.5 21.2 78.7

Deferred 2.0 1.1 3.1 (13.7) 5.2 (8.5) (9.5) 5.5 (4.0)

Total income taxes $13.9 $25.8 $39.7 $24.7 $30.1 $  54.8 $  48.0 $26.7 $  74.7
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7 Restructuring and Other Non-Recurring Charges

Other non-recurring charges of $28.4 million were incurred in the fourth quarter
of 2001. These charges primarily include adjustments to the carrying value of cer-
tain assets and liabilities related to businesses acquired and disposed of over the
past three years. Of the $28.4 million of pretax charges, $5.0 million represents
non-cash charges. Approximately $3.3 million was spent in 2001, $8.4 million
was transferred to environmental reserves, and the remaining $11.7 million is
expected to be spent over the next two years. The Company expects to fund the
total cash outlay of these actions with cash flow from operations.

Restructuring and other non-recurring charges totaling $62.9 million were
incurred in the second half of 2000 in response to deteriorating market condi-
tions. The charges included the rationalization and integration of certain busi-
nesses and actions taken to bring costs in line with vehicle production slow-
downs in major customer product lines. Of the $62.9 million pretax charges in
2000, $47.3 million represented non-cash charges. Approximately $4.4 million
was spent in 2000 and $11.2 million was spent in 2001.

Components of the restructuring and other non-recurring charges are detailed in
the following table and discussed further below.

(millions of dollars)

Severance Loss on Other Exit Costs
and Other Asset Sale of and Non-Recurring
Benefits Write-downs Business Charges Total

Provisions $ 8.9 $ 11.6 $ 35.2 $  7.2 $ 62.9

Incurred (4.3) — — (0.1) (4.4)

Non-cash write-offs — (11.6) (35.2) (0.5) (47.3)

Balance, 
December 31, 2000 4.6 — — 6.6 11.2

Provisions — 5.0 — 23.4 28.4

Incurred (4.6) — — (18.3) (22.9)

Non-cash write-offs — (5.0) — — (5.0)

Balance, 
December 31, 2001 $ — $  — $    — $11.7 $ 11.7

Severance and other benefit costs relate to the reduction of approximately 220
employees from the workforce. The reductions affect each of the Company’s oper-
ating segments, apart from TorqTransfer Systems, across each of the Company’s
geographical areas, and across each major functional area, including production and
selling and administrative positions. As of December 31, 2001, approximately $8.9
million had been paid for severance and other benefits for the terminated employees.

Asset write-downs primarily consist of the write-off of impaired assets that will
no longer be used in production as a result of the industry downturn and the
consolidation of certain operations. Such assets have been taken or are in the
process of being taken out of productive use and are being disposed.

Loss on anticipated sale of business is related to the Fuel Systems business,
which was sold in April 2001. Fuel Systems produced metal tanks for the heavy
truck market in North America and did not fit the Company’s strategic focus on
powertrain technology. In April 2000, the Company announced its intention to sell
this non-core business, which was acquired as part of the vehicle products busi-
ness of Kuhlman Corporation in March 1999. With the deterioration of the North
American heavy truck market in the second half of 2000, the value of this busi-
ness had significantly decreased, creating the $35.2 million pre-tax loss. In April
2001, the Company completed the sale of its Fuel Systems business to an
investor group led by TMB Industries, a private equity group. Terms of the trans-
action did not have a significant impact on the Company’s results of operations,
financial condition or cash flows.

Other exit costs and non-recurring charges are primarily non-employee related
exit costs for certain non-production facilities the Company has previously sold or
no longer needs and non-recurring product quality related charges. The 2001 non-
recurring charges include $8.4 million of environmental remediation costs related
to sold businesses and $12 million of product quality costs for issues with prod-
ucts that were sold by acquired businesses prior to acquisition, all of which have
been fixed in the currently produced products.

BorgWarner Inc. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
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6 Notes Payable and Long-Term Debt

Following is a summary of notes payable and long-term debt. The weighted
average interest rate on all borrowings for 2001 and 2000 was 5.8% and
6.5%, respectively.

(millions of dollars)

2001 2000
December 31, Current Long-Term Current Long-Term

Bank borrowings $30.6 $ 69.4 $48.7 $  57.7 

Term loans due through 2011 
(at an average rate of 3.3% in 
2001 and 4.2% in 2000; and 
3.0% at December 31, 2001) 5.0 31.2 4.7 23.1 

7% Senior Notes due 2006, 
net of unamortized discount — 141.8 — 142.8

6.5% Senior Notes due 2009, 
net of unamortized discount — 164.7 — 188.4 

8% Senior Notes due 2019, 
net of unamortized discount — 134.2 — 139.9 

7.125% Senior Notes due 2029, 
net of unamortized discount — 159.9 — 187.3 

Capital lease liabilities 
(at an average rate of 7.9% 
in 2001 and 7.6% in 2000) — 0.2 1.0 1.2

Total notes payable 
and long-term debt $35.6 $701.4 $54.4 $740.4 

Annual principal payments required as of December 31, 2001 are as follows
(in millions of dollars):

2002 $  35.6 
2003 4.9
2004 4.6
2005 74.0
2006 146.3
after 2006 475.3
Less: Unamortized discounts (3.7)
Total $737.0

The Company has a revolving credit facility which provides for borrowings up to
$350 million through July, 2005. At December 31, 2001, $20.0 million of borrow-
ings under the facility were outstanding in addition to $6.5 million of obligations
under standby letters of credit. At December 31, 2000, the facility was unused.
The credit agreement contains numerous financial and operating covenants
including, among others, covenants requiring the Company to maintain certain
financial ratios and restricting its ability to incur additional indebtedness.

In July 2001, the Company entered into an interest rate swap agreement with a
financial institution to swap interest on $100 million of 7% fixed rate Senior Notes
for variable interest at LIBOR plus 0.98% (approximately 3.0% at December 31,
2001). The agreement terminates when the underlying Notes mature on
November 1, 2006. This interest rate swap has been recorded as a fair value
hedge. There was no ineffectiveness related to the derivative in 2001. As of
December 31, 2001, the interest rate swap has a notional amount of $100 million
and a fair value of $2.5 million.

As of December 31, 2001 and 2000, the estimated fair values of the Company’s
senior unsecured notes totaled $579.6 million and $516.6 million, respectively.
The estimated fair values were $21.0 million lower in 2001, and $141.8 million
lower in 2000, than their respective carrying values. The fair value of all other
debt instruments is estimated to approximate their recorded value, as their appli-
cable interest rates approximate current market rates for borrowings with similar
terms and maturities. Fair market values are developed by the use of estimates
obtained from brokers and other appropriate valuation techniques based on infor-
mation available as of year-end. The fair value estimates do not necessarily reflect
the values the Company could realize in the current markets.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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The Company’s weighted-average assumptions used as of December 31, in
determining the pension costs and pension liabilities shown above were as follows:

(percent)

Pension Benefits Other Postretirement Benefits

2001 2000 1999 2001 2000 1999

U.S. plans:
Discount rate 7.25 7.5 8.0 7.25 7.5 8.0
Rate of salary

progression 4.5 4.5 4.5
Expected return 

on plan assets 9.5 9.5 9.5
Foreign plans:

Discount rate 5.5-6.0 5.5-6.0 5.5-6.0
Rate of compensation

increase 2.5-4.0 2.5-4.0 2.5-4.5
Expected return

on plan assets 6.5 6.0 6.0 

The weighted-average rate of increase in the per capita cost of covered health
care benefits is projected to be 10% in 2002 grading down annually until the
ultimate rate of 4.5% is reached in 2007. A one-percentage point change in the
assumed health care cost trend would have the following effects:

(millions of dollars)

One Percentage Point
Increase Decrease

Effect on postretirement benefit obligation $46.5 $(39.9)

Effect on total service and interest cost components $ 4.7 $ (3.9)

9 Stock Incentive Plans

Stock option plans Under the Company’s 1993 Stock Incentive Plan, the Company
may grant options to purchase shares of the Company’s common stock at the fair
market value on the date of grant. In 2000, the Company increased the number
of shares available for grant by 1,200,000 to 2,700,000 shares. The options vest
over periods up to three years and have a term of ten years from date of grant.
As of December 31, 2001, there are 1,493,220 outstanding options on the 1993
Stock Incentive Plan.

The Company accounts for stock options in accordance with Accounting
Principles Board Opinion No. 25. Accordingly, no compensation cost has been
recognized for fixed stock options because the exercise price of the stock
options exceeded or equaled the market value of the Company’s common stock
at the date of grant. 

A summary of the plan’s shares under option at December 31, 2001, 2000 and
1999 follows: 

2001 2000 1999

Weighted- Weighted- Weighted-
Average Average Average

Shares Exercise Shares Exercise Shares Exercise
(thousands) Price (thousands) Price (thousands) Price

Outstanding at
beginning of year 1,248 $41.22 861 $43.37 654 $38.85

Granted 442 47.99 506 36.11 266 53.25

Exercised (129) 22.51 (54) 19.59 (28) 22.35

Forfeited (68) 45.18 (65) 47.77 (31) 52.03

Outstanding at 
end of year 1,493 $44.67 1,248 $41.22  861 $43.37 

Options exercisable 
at year-end 423 $46.81 431  $38.12 328 $28.32

Options available 
for future grants 895

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding at 
December 31, 2001:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Weighted- Weighted- Weighted- 
Number Average Average Number Average

Range of Outstanding Remaining Exercise Exercisable Exercise
Exercise Prices (thousands) Contractual Life Price (thousands) Price

$22.50 – 44.19 584 7.5 $34.95 107 $28.63   

$48.28 – 53.44 638 8.5 49.50 138 51.06 

$53.88 – 57.31 271 7.0 54.24  178 54.44

$22.50 – 57.31 1,493 7.9 $44.67  423 $46.81
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8 Retirement Benefit Plans

The Company has a number of defined benefit pension plans and other postretire-
ment benefit plans covering eligible salaried and hourly employees. The other post-
retirement benefit plans, which provide medical and life insurance benefits, are
unfunded plans. The following provides a reconciliation of the plans’ benefit obliga-
tions, plan assets, funded status and recognition in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

(millions of dollars)

Pension Postretirement
Benefits Benefits

December 31, 2001 2000 2001 2000

Change in benefit obligation:

Benefit obligation at beginning of year $350.3 $349.7 $ 341.6 $ 300.1
Service cost 7.1 6.8 4.4 3.8
Interest cost 25.0 23.4 25.0 23.4
Plan participants’ contributions 0.2 0.2 — —
Amendments 7.5 2.2 — —
Net actuarial loss 23.6 8.8 64.2 39.2
Currency translation adjustment (1.4) (11.5) — —
Settlements (0.2) (2.1) (1.4) (0.5)
Special termination benefits — 0.4 — —
Benefits paid (26.4)  (27.6) (26.7) (24.4)

Benefit obligation at end of year $385.7 $350.3 $ 407.1 $ 341.6 
Change in plan assets:

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year $385.1 $447.0
Actual return on plan assets (2.3) (16.1)
Employer and other contributions 3.1 (7.5)
Plan participants’ contributions 0.2 0.2
Currency translation adjustment (1.2) (8.0)
Settlements (0.3) (2.9)
Benefits paid (26.4)  (27.6)

Fair value of plan assets at end of year $358.2 $385.1 

Reconciliation of funded status:

Funded status $(27.5) $  34.8 $(407.1) $(341.6)
Unrecognized net actuarial (gain) loss 50.8 (7.4) 98.2 35.5
Unrecognized transition asset (0.3) (0.4) — —
Unrecognized prior service cost 12.7 7.4 (0.6) (0.7)

Net amount recognized $  35.7 $  34.4 $(309.5) $(306.8)

Amounts recognized in the 

consolidated balance sheets:

Prepaid benefit cost $  71.1 $  66.5 $ — $ —
Accrued benefit liability (35.4) (32.1) (309.5) (306.8)
Additional minimum liability (42.2) (0.2) — —
Intangible asset 12.3 — — —
Accumulated other comprehensive income 29.9 0.2 — —

Net amount recognized $  35.7 $  34.4 $(309.5) $(306.8)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

The funded status of pension plans included above with accumulated benefit
obligations in excess of plan assets at December 31 is as follows:

(millions of dollars)

2001 2000

Accumulated benefit obligation $295.2 $120.6

Plan assets 238.1 90.7

Deficiency $  57.1 $  29.9

(millions of dollars)

For the Year Ended Pension Benefits Other Postretirement Benefits

December 31, 2001 2000 1999 2001 2000 1999

Components of net
periodic benefit cost:

Service cost $ 7.1 $  6.8 $  6.2 $ 4.4 $ 3.8 $ 4.8
Interest cost 25.0 23.4 22.6 25.0 23.4 21.1
Expected return 

on plan assets (32.1) (36.8) (34.7) — — —
Amortization of

unrecognized 
transition asset (0.1) (0.1) (0.2) — — —

Amortization of
unrecognized 
prior service cost 2.2 1.5 1.2 (0.1) (0.1) —

Amortization of
unrecognized (gain)/loss — (2.7) — — — —

Settlement loss 0.1 1.8 0.8 — — —
Curtailment gain —  — (0.3) — — —

Net periodic benefit
cost (income) $ 2.2 $ (6.1) $ (4.4) $29.3 $27.1 $25.9 
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The components of accumulated other comprehensive income (net of tax) in the
Consolidated Balance Sheets are as follows:

(millions of dollars)

December 31, 2001 2000

Foreign currency translation adjustment $(34.2) $(15.8)

Minimum pension liability adjustment (18.9) (0.2)

Accumulated other comprehensive income $(53.1) $(16.0)

11 Contingent Liabilities

The Company and certain of its current and former direct and indirect corporate
predecessors, subsidiaries and divisions have been identified by the United States
Environmental Protection Agency and certain state environmental agencies and
private parties as potentially responsible parties (PRPs) at various hazardous waste
disposal sites under the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation
and Liability Act (Superfund) and equivalent state laws and, as such, may presently
be liable for the cost of clean-up and other remedial activities at 43 such sites.
Responsibility for clean-up and other remedial activities at a Superfund site is
typically shared among PRPs based on an allocation formula.

Based on information available to the Company, which in most cases, includes:
an estimate of allocation of liability among PRPs; the probability that other PRPs,
many of whom are large, solvent public companies, will fully pay the cost appor-
tioned to them; currently available information from PRPs and/or federal or state
environmental agencies concerning the scope of contamination and estimated
remediation costs; remediation alternatives; estimated legal fees; and other factors,
the Company has established a reserve for indicated environmental liabilities with
a balance at December 31, 2001 of approximately $25.5 million. The Company
expects this amount to be expended over the next three to five years.

BorgWarner believes that none of these matters, individually or in the aggregate,
will have a material adverse effect on its financial condition or future operating
results, generally either because estimates of the maximum potential liability at
a site are not large or because liability will be shared with other PRPs, although no
assurance can be given with respect to the ultimate outcome of any such matter.

In connection with the sale of Kuhlman Electric Corporation, the Company agreed
to indemnify the buyer and Kuhlman Electric for certain environmental liabilities
relating to the past operations of Kuhlman Electric. During 2000, Kuhlman Electric
notified the Company that it discovered potential environmental contamination at
its Crystals Springs, Mississippi plant while undertaking an expansion of the plant.

The Company has been working with the Mississippi Department of Environmental
Quality and Kuhlman Electric to investigate the extent of the contamination. The
investigation has revealed the presence of PCBs in portions of the soil at the
plant and neighboring areas. In mid 2001, Kuhlman Electric and others, including
the Company, were sued by twenty-six plaintiffs in several lawsuits, which claim
personal and property damage. The Company has moved to be dismissed from
these lawsuits.

The Company has filed a lawsuit against Kuhlman Electric seeking a declaration
of the scope of the Company’s contractual indemnity. The Company believes that
the reserve for environmental liabilities is sufficient to cover any potential liability
associated with this matter.

12 Acquisitions and Divestitures

Acquisitions

Kuhlman Corporat ion

On March 1, 1999, the Company acquired all the outstanding shares of common
stock of Kuhlman Corporation, a manufacturer of vehicle and electrical products, for
a purchase price of $693.0 million. The Company funded the transaction by issuing
3,287,127 shares of the Company’s common stock valued at $149.8 million and by
borrowing $543.2 million in cash. The Company also assumed additional indebted-
ness for the settlement of certain long-term incentive programs and severance
programs, which amounted to approximately $14 million, net of tax benefits, and
refinanced Kuhlman’s other existing indebtedness assumed of $131.6 million.
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Pro forma information regarding net income and earnings per share is required by
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123, and has been determined
as if the Company had accounted for its employee stock options under the fair
value method of that Statement. The fair value for these options was estimated
at the date of grant using a Black-Scholes options pricing model with the following
weighted-average assumptions:

2001 2000 1999

Risk-free interest rate 5.02% 6.50% 5.43%  

Dividend yield 1.49% 1.52% 1.49%  

Volatility factor 32.73% 32.54% 31.88%  

Weighted-average expected life 6.5 years 6.5 years 6.5 years  

For purposes of pro forma disclosures, the estimated fair value of the options is
amortized to expense over the options’ vesting period. The Company’s pro forma
net earnings and earnings per share, adjusted to include pro forma expense related
to stock options, are as follows:

(millions of dollars, 
except per share and option amounts)

2001 2000 1999

Net earnings – as reported $66.4 $94.0 $132.3  

Net earnings – pro forma 64.8 92.5 130.7  

Earnings per share – as reported (basic) 2.52 3.56 5.10  

Earnings per share – as reported (diluted) 2.51 3.54 5.07  

Earnings per share – pro forma (basic) 2.46 3.50 5.04  

Earnings per share – pro forma (diluted) 2.45 3.48 5.01  

Weighted-average fair value of options 
granted during the year 17.28 13.63 19.45  

Executive stock performance plan The Company has an executive stock
performance plan which provides payouts at the end of successive three-year
periods based on the Company’s performance in terms of total stockholder return
relative to a peer group of automotive companies. Payouts earned are payable 40%
in cash and 60% in the Company’s common stock. For the three-year measure-
ment periods ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, the amounts earned
under the plan and accrued over the three-year periods were $5.2 million, $3.4
million and $2.0 million, respectively. Under this plan, 25,860 shares, 21,818
shares and 21,892 shares were issued in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.
Estimated shares issuable under the plan are included in the computation of diluted
earnings per share as earned.

Earnings per share In calculating earnings per share, earnings are the same for
the basic and diluted calculations. Shares increased for diluted earnings per share
by 148,000, 96,000 and 130,000 for 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively, due to
the effects of stock options and shares issuable under the executive stock
performance plan.

10 Other Comprehensive Income

The components of other comprehensive income in the Consolidated Statements
of Stockholders’ Equity, net of tax effects, are as follows:

(millions of dollars)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2001 2000 1999

Foreign currency translation adjustment  $(14.6)  $(28.0) $11.9  

Income taxes (3.8) (0.2) —   

Net foreign currency translation adjustment (18.4) (28.2) 11.9  

Minimum pension liability adjustment (29.7) (0.1) (0.1)  

Income taxes 11.0 — —   

Net minimum pension liability adjustment (18.7)  (0.1)  (0.1)  

Other comprehensive income (loss) $(37.1) $(28.3) $11.8  

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Operating Segments
(millions of dollars)

Sales Earnings
Before Long-Lived

Inter- Interest Year End Depreciation/ Assets
Customers segment Net and Taxes Assets Amortization Expenditures d

2001
Air/Fluid Systems $ 350.2 $ 7.6 $ 357.8 $ 12.9 $ 382.1 $ 21.6 $ 17.6
Cooling Systemsa 220.5 — 220.5 7.5 510.1 27.7 14.6
Morse TEC 846.7 22.7 869.4 119.8 1,066.4 53.5 75.7
TorqTransfer Systems 498.7 1.4 500.1 24.1 266.6 18.7 38.0
Transmission Systems 417.5 11.3 428.8 48.5 359.6 22.3 26.6 
Divested operations and businesses held for saleb 18.0 — 18.0 (0.2) — 0.2 —
Intersegment eliminations — (43.0) (43.0) — — — —

Total 2,351.6 — 2,351.6 212.6 2,584.8 144.0 172.5
Corporate, including equity in affiliates — — — (30.3) 186.1c 2.2 10.4
Restructuring and other non-recurring charges — — — (28.4) — — —
Consolidated $2,351.6 $ — $2,351.6 $153.9 $2,770.9 $146.2 $182.9

2000
Air/Fluid Systems $ 419.0 $ 8.8 $ 427.8 $ 35.7 $ 403.2 $ 20.7 $ 27.0
Cooling Systemsa 280.8 0.5 281.3 32.1 536.8 27.9 16.7
Morse TEC 860.0 25.8 885.8 127.4 1,017.7 50.3 82.8
TorqTransfer Systems 524.9 1.8 526.7 37.2 250.3 18.0 19.2
Transmission Systems 428.5 9.0 437.5 46.0 353.1 22.6 32.6 
Divested operations and businesses held for saleb 132.7 0.2 132.9 3.2 73.6 2.9 4.6
Intersegment eliminations — (46.1) (46.1) — — — —

Total 2,645.9 — 2,645.9 281.6 2,634.7 142.4 182.9
Corporate, including equity in affiliates — — — (7.3) 104.9c 3.1 13.9
Restructuring and other non-recurring charges — — — (62.9) — — —
Consolidated $2,645.9 $ — $2,645.9 $211.4 $2,739.6 $145.5 $196.8

1999
Air/Fluid Systems $ 406.3 $ 7.6 $ 413.9 $ 36.5 $ 407.9 $ 19.4 $ 14.4
Cooling Systemsa 140.2 2.6 142.8 17.9 560.8 11.4 7.7
Morse TEC 771.4 25.5 796.9 109.7 1,007.4 43.7 88.4
TorqTransfer Systems 560.9 2.4 563.3 41.2 261.3 18.5 31.0 
Transmission Systems 405.2 8.2 413.4 54.1 356.0 22.7 21.1
Divested operations and businesses held for saleb 174.6 3.4 178.0 6.9 123.4 6.1 6.2
Intersegment eliminations — (49.7) (49.7) — — — —

Total 2,458.6 — 2,458.6 266.3 2,716.8 121.8 168.8 
Corporate, including equity in affiliates — — — (10.1) 253.9c 1.6 — 
Consolidated $2,458.6 $ — $2,458.6 $256.2 $2,970.7 $123.4 $168.8

(a) Cooling Systems was added in 1999.
(b) Fuel Systems was sold in 2001. The HVAC business was sold in 2000. The forged powdered metal race business was sold in 1999.
(c) Corporate assets, including equity in affiliates, are net of trade receivables sold to third parties, and include cash, marketable securities, deferred taxes and investments and advances.
(d) Long-lived asset expenditures includes capital spending and additions to non-perishable tooling, net of customer reimbursements.
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The vehicle products businesses were accounted for as a purchase and the
Company began consolidating their results since the date of acquisition. These
businesses have been integrated into the Air/Fluid Systems, Cooling Systems
and Morse TEC segments.

The electrical products businesses acquired from Kuhlman consisted of Kuhlman
Electric and Coleman Cable. These businesses manufactured transformers for
the utility industry and wire and cable for utilities and other industries. These
products did not fit the Company’s strategic direction and, at the time of the
Kuhlman Acquisition, the Company announced that it intended to sell the
businesses. These businesses were accounted for as businesses held for sale
during 1999, and as such, no sales or income between the date of acquisition and
their dates of sale was included in the consolidated results of the Company.

In 1999, Kuhlman Electric was sold to Carlyle Group, L.L.C. for $120.1 million,
including debt securities with a face value of $15.0 million. The $137.3 million
sale of Coleman Cable to a group of equity investors included debt securities with
a face value of $15.3 million. See Note One for the carrying value of debt securities
related to the sales. Proceeds from the sales were used to repay indebtedness.

Eaton Corporat ion’s  F lu id  Power Div is ion

On October 1, 1999, the Company acquired Eaton Corporation’s Fluid Power Division,
one of the world’s leading manufacturers of powertrain cooling solutions for the
global automotive industry for $321.7 million in cash. The Company accounted
for the acquisition as a purchase and began consolidating it in October 1999.

The following unaudited pro forma information has been prepared assuming that
both the Kuhlman merger and the Eaton Corporation’s Fluid Power Division
acquisition had occurred at the beginning of 1999, and includes adjustments for
estimated amounts of goodwill amortization, increased interest expense on bor-
rowings incurred to finance the transactions, elimination of expenses related to
Kuhlman’s corporate headquarters which has been closed, exclusion of revenues,
costs and expenses for Kuhlman’s electrical products businesses, including an
allocation of goodwill amortization and interest expense, and the tax effects of all
preceding adjustments. Sales from divested operations of $41.3 million in 1999
are included in the pro forma sales amounts.

(millions of dollars, 
except per share amounts)

Year Ended December 31, 1999

Net sales $2,684.4

Net earnings 134.8

Net earnings per share

Basic 5.04

Diluted 5.03

13 Operating Segments and Related Information

The Company’s business is comprised of five operating segments: Air/Fluid
Systems, Cooling Systems, Morse TEC, TorqTransfer Systems and Transmission
Systems. These reportable segments are strategic business units which are
managed separately because each represents a specific grouping of automotive
components and systems. The Company evaluates performance based on earn-
ings before interest and taxes, which emphasizes realization of a satisfactory
return on the total capital invested in each operating unit. Intersegment sales,
which are not significant, are recorded at market prices.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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The following table reconciles segments’ earnings before interest and income
taxes to consolidated earnings before income taxes.

(millions of dollars)

2001 2000 1999

Earnings before interest and income taxes $153.9 $211.4 $256.2

Interest expense and finance charges (47.8) (62.6) (49.2)

Earnings before income taxes $106.1 $148.8 $207.0

Geographic information No country outside the U.S., other than Germany,
accounts for as much as 5% of consolidated net sales, attributing sales to the
sources of the product rather than the location of the customer. For this purpose,
the Company’s 50% equity investment in NSK-Warner (Note Five) amounting to
$128.8 million at December 31, 2001 is excluded from the definition of long-lived
assets, as are goodwill and certain other noncurrent assets.

(millions of dollars)

Net Sales Long-Lived Assets

2001 2000 1999 2001 2000 1999

United States $1,687.4 $1,960.2  $1,848.4  $638.5 $591.9   $574.1

Europe:

Germany 347.5 350.0  325.6  148.5 132.3  128.9

Other Europe 162.2 183.2  165.6  64.4 60.6  67.1

Total Europe 509.7 533.2  491.2  212.9 192.9  196.0

Other Foreign 154.5 152.5 119.0 75.5 88.6   89.2

Total $2,351.6 $2,645.9  $2,458.6  $926.9 $873.4  $859.3

Sales to major customers Consolidated sales included sales to Ford Motor
Company of approximately 30%, 30% and 31%; to DaimlerChrysler of approx-
imately 21%, 19% and 19%; and to General Motors Corporation of approxi-
mately 12%, 13% and 13% for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and
1999, respectively. No other single customer accounted for more than 10% of
consolidated sales in any year between 1999 and 2001. Such sales consisted
of a variety of products to a variety of customer locations worldwide. Each of
the five operating segments had significant sales to all three of the customers
listed above.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Inter im F inanc ia l  Informat ion (Unaudi ted)  

The following information includes all adjustments, as well as normal recurring
items, that the Company considers necessary for a fair presentation of 2001 and

2000 interim results of operations. Certain 2001 and 2000 quarterly amounts
have been reclassified to conform to the annual presentation. 
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(millions of dollars, except per share amounts)

2001 2000

Quarter Ended, March 31 June 30 Sept. 30 Dec. 31 Year 2001 March 31 June 30 Sept.30 Dec. 31 Year 2000

Net sales $606.8 $602.0 $559.9 $582.9 $2,351.6 $730.2 $700.9 $618.5 $596.3 $2,645.9

Cost of sales 471.1 458.4 429.7 442.8 1,802.0 550.3 531.3 473.0 448.5 2,003.1

Depreciation 27.0 25.7 25.5 26.0 104.2 26.2 25.9 25.2 24.9 102.2 

Selling, general and administrative expenses 55.6 59.3 55.5 63.9 234.3 63.5 57.8 57.5 65.3 244.1 

Minority interest 0.7 0.7 1.1 1.3 3.8 0.7 0.4 0.8 0.8 2.7 

Goodwill amortization 10.6 10.3 10.4 10.7 42.0 11.0 10.7 10.8 10.8 43.3

Restructuring and other non-recurring charges — — — 28.4 28.4 — — 32.6 30.3 62.9

Equity in affiliate earnings, net of tax and other income (4.5) (4.6) (3.9) (4.0) (17.0) (3.5) (4.7) (4.2) (11.4) (23.8) 

Earnings before interest expense, finance charges 
and income taxes 46.3 52.2 41.6 13.8 153.9 82.0 79.5 22.8 27.1 211.4

Interest expense and finance charges 12.8 12.4 12.3 10.3 47.8 15.9 15.9 15.9 14.9 62.6

Earnings before income taxes 33.5 39.8 29.3 3.5 106.1 66.1 63.6 6.9 12.2 148.8 

Provision for income taxes 12.4 15.1 10.9 1.3 39.7 25.1 23.5 1.7 4.5 54.8

Net earnings $ 21.1 $  24.7 $ 18.4 $   2.2 $ 66.4 $ 41.0 $ 40.1 $ 5.2 $ 7.7 $ 94.0

Net earnings per share – basic $ 0.80 $  0.94 $  0.70 $ 0.08 $ 2.52 $ 1.54 $ 1.52 $ 0.20 $ 0.30 $ 3.56

Net earnings per share – diluted $ 0.80 $  0.93 $  0.70 $ 0.08 a $ 2.51a $ 1.53 $ 1.51 $ 0.20b $ 0.30b $ 3.54b

(a) Diluted earnings per share excluding the fourth quarter non-recurring charges were $0.80 for the quarter ended December 31, 2001 and $3.23 for the year ended December 31, 2001.
(b) Diluted earnings per share excluding the restructuring and other non-recurring charges for the quarters ended September 30, 2000 and December 31, 2000 and for the year ended December 31, 2000 were $0.95, $1.02 and $5.01, respectively.
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(millions of dollars, except per share data)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997

Statement of Operations Data

Net sales $2,351.6 $2,645.9 $2,458.6 $1,836.8 $1,767.0 

Cost of sales 1,802.0 2,003.1 1,888.5 1,450.7 1,375.4 

Depreciation 104.2 102.2 91.3 74.8 70.4 

Selling, general and administrative expenses 234.3 244.1 203.3 135.1 132.0 

Minority interest 3.8 2.7 1.3 2.1 3.2 

Goodwill amortization 42.0 43.3 32.1 16.8 16.7 

Restructuring and other non-recurring charges 28.4a 62.9b — — —

Equity in affiliate earnings, net of tax and other income (17.0) (23.8) (14.1) (10.3) (13.2)

Interest expense and finance charges 47.8 62.6 49.2 26.9 24.6 

Provision for income taxes 39.7 54.8 74.7 46.0 54.7 

Net earnings $   66.4 $ 94.0 $ 132.3 $ 94.7 $ 103.2 

Net earnings per share – basic $   2.52a $ 3.56b $ 5.10 $ 4.03 $ 4.35 

Average shares outstanding (thousands) – basic 26,315 26,391 25,948 23,479 23,683 

Net earnings per share – diluted $   2.51a $ 3.54b $ 5.07 $ 4.00 $ 4.31 

Average shares outstanding (thousands) – diluted 26,463 26,487 26,078 23,676 23,934 

Cash dividend declared per share $   0.60 $ 0.60 $ 0.60 $ 0.60 $ 0.60 

Balance Sheet Data (at end of period)

Total assets $2,770.9 $2,739.6 $2,970.7 $1,846.1 $1,736.3 

Total debt 737.0 794.8 980.3 393.5 338.1  

(a) In 2001, the Company recorded $28.4 million in non-recurring charges. Net of tax, this totaled $19.0 million or $0.72 per diluted share. Earnings before non-recurring charges were $85.4 million or $3.23 per diluted share.

(b) In 2000, the Company recorded $62.9 million in restructuring and other non-recurring charges. Net of tax, this totaled $38.7 million or $1.47 per diluted share. Earnings before restructuring and other non-recurring charges were $132.7 million,
or $5.01 per diluted share.

Selected Financial Data
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Company Information

BorgWarner Inc. 
200 South Michigan Avenue, Chicago, IL 60604 
312-322-8500
www.bwauto.com

Stock Listing

Shares are listed and traded on the New York Stock Exchange. Ticker symbol: BWA.

High Low

Fourth Quarter 2001 $ 52.25 $ 39.88
Third Quarter 2001 54.50 36.49
Second Quarter 2001 49.62 39.60
First Quarter 2001 45.81 38.90

Fourth Quarter 2000 $ 40 $ 33
Third Quarter 2000 37 319⁄16

Second Quarter 2000 441⁄8 351⁄8
First Quarter 2000 39 7⁄16 301⁄16

Dividends

The current dividend practice established by the directors is to declare regular
quarterly dividends. The last such dividend of 15 cents per share of common
stock was declared on January 15, 2002, payable February 15, 2002, to stock-
holders of record on February 1, 2002. The current practice is subject to review
and change at the discretion of the Board of Directors.

Shareholder Services

Mellon Investor Services is the transfer agent, registrar and dividend dispersing
agent for BorgWarner common stock. 

Mellon Investor Services for BorgWarner
85 Challenger Road 
Ridgefield Park, NJ 07660
www.mellon-investor.com

Communications concerning stock transfer, change of address, lost stock certifi-
cates or proxy statements for the annual meeting should be directed to Mellon
Investor Services at 800-851-4229.

Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan

The BorgWarner Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan has been
established so that anyone can make direct purchases of BorgWarner common
stock and reinvest dividends. We pay the brokerage commissions on purchases.
Questions about the plan can be directed to Mellon at 800-851-4229. To receive
a prospectus and enrollment package, contact Mellon at 800-842-7629.

Annual Meeting of Stockholders

The 2002 annual meeting of stockholders will be held on Wednesday, 
April 24, 2002, beginning at 10:00 a.m. on the 19th floor of our headquarters at
200 South Michigan Avenue in Chicago.

Stockholders

As of December 31, 2001, there were 3,130 holders of record and an estimated
9,000 beneficial holders.

Investor Information

Visit www.bwauto.com for a wide range of company information. For investor
information, including the following, click on Investor Information.

• BorgWarner News Releases

• BorgWarner Stock Quote

• Earnings Release Conference Call Calendar

• Analyst Coverage

• Shareholder Services

• BorgWarner In The News Articles

• Annual Reports

• Proxy Statement and Card

• Dividend Reinvestment / Stock Purchase Plan

• Financials and SEC Filings (including the Annual Report on Form 10K)

• Request Information Form

News Release Sign-up

At our Investor Information web page, you can sign up to receive BorgWarner’s
news releases. Here’s how to sign up:
1. Go to www.bwauto.com

2. Click Investor Information
3. Click News Releases Sign-up and follow the instructions

Investor Inquiries

Investors and securities analysts requiring financial reports, interviews or other
information should contact Mary E. Brevard, Director of Investor Relations and
Communications at BorgWarner headquarters, 312-322-8683. For copies of printed
material, call our BorgWarner Investor Relations Hot Line at 312-322-8524.

Corporate Information

BorgWarner Inc. owns U.S. trademark registrations for: BorgWarner, , , 
HY-VO, MORSE, MORSE GEMINI, TORQUE-ON-DEMAND and TOD. BorgWarner owns the trademarks: 
ITM, InterActive Torque Management, DualTronic and BorgWarner Indianapolis 500 Trophy.
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